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June 1.2020

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Economic and
Housing Stability, to enter into a Sole Source contract with Tri-County Community Action
Program, Inc. (VC#177195-B009), Berlin, NH in the amount of $127,022 for the provision of
Permanent Housing and Supportive Services to Individuals and families who are experiencing
homelessness through the Federal Continuum of Care Program, vwith the option to renew for up
to two (2) additional years, effective July 1, 2020 or upon Governor and Council approval,
whichever is later, through June 30, 2021.100% Federal Funds.

Funds are available in the following account for State Fiscal Year 2021, \with the authority
to adjust budget line items within the price limitation through the Budget Office, if needed and
justified.

05-95-42-423010-7927 HEALTH & SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SERVICES. HHS: HUMAN SERVICES, HOMELESS & HOUSING, HOUSING-
SHELTER PROGRAM

State

Fiscal Year

Class /

Account
Class Title Job Number total Amount

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc TBD $127,022

Total $127,022

EXPLANATION

This request is Sole Source because federal regulations require the Department to
specify each vendor's name during the annual, federal Continuum of Care Program renewal
application process, prior to the grant award being issued. Annually; the US Department of
Housing and Urban Development (HUD) oversees a Continuum of Care Program, Notice of
Funding Available (NOFA), competitive application process. As part of this process, the
Department is required to provide HUD with each potential vendor, and HUD evaluates vendor
applications. Based on that evaluation process, HUD directs the Department to provide grant
awards and the specific amounts to vendors.

The purpose of this request Is to provide a Permanent Supportive Housing Program that
delivers rental assistance and supportive services to individuals and families who are
experiencing homelessness. Approximately six (6) households, comprised of individuals or
families, at any one time, will be served from July 1, 2020 to June 30, 2021



His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council
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The Vendor will facilitate movement of participants Into sustained permanent housing
while providing connections to community and mainstream services in order to maximize
participants' abilities to live more Independently. The U.S. Department of Housing and Urban
Development established the Continuum of Care concept to support communities In their efforts
to address the problems of housing and homelessness In a coordinated, comprehensive and
strategic manner.

The Department will monitor contracted services using the following methods and tools;
•  Annual reviews relating to compliance with administrative rules and contractual

agreements.

•  Semi-annual statistical reports, including various demographic information and income
and expense reports, to Include match dollars.

•  Reports that are available through the timely and accurate entry of data Into the New
Hampshire Homeless Management Information System.

>

As referenced in Exhibit A. Revisions to Standard Contract Provisions, Section 1.
Paragraph 1.2, of the attached contract, the parties have the option to extend the agreement for
up to two (2) additional years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding,
agreement of the parties and Governor and Council approval.

,  ; r'Shouid the Governor and Council not authorize this request, there will be fevirer permanent
housing options and supportive services available! leaving vulnerable Individuals and families in
unsafe or deadly situations without a safety net. Additionally, If data Is not collected, as required
by these contracts, the Department will be Incompllant with federal regulations, which could result
in a loss of federal funding for these and other types of homeless and permanent housing
supportive sen/Ices.

Area served: Counties of Carroll, Coos, and Grafton.

Source of Funds: CFDA #14.267. FAIN #NH0120T1T001900

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available. General Funds will not
be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted.

#■
n

Loti A. Shibinette
Commissioner

The Deparlment of IleaUh and Human Services' Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.



FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 12/11/2019)

Subject:_Permanent Supportive Housing II Program (SS-2020-BHS-09-PERMA-01)

Notice: This agreenicni and all of its attachments shall become public upon submission to Covcnior and
Executive Council for approval. Any information that is private, confidential or proprietary must
be clearly identified to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract.

AGREEMENT

The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

1.1 Slate Agency Name

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Strviccs

1.2 Stale Agency Address

129 Pleasant Street

Concord. NH 03301-3857

I..3 Contractor Name

Tri-County Comnninity Action Program, Inc.

1.4 Contractor Address

30 Exchange St. -

Berlin, NH 03570

1.5 Contractor Phone

Number

(603)752-7001

1.6 Account Number

05-95-42-423010-7927-

102-500731

1.7 Completion Dale

June 30.2021

1.8 Price Limitation

$127,022

1.9 Contracting Officer for State Agency

Naihiin D. Wliite, Director

1.10 Slate Agency Telephone Number

(603)271-9631.

1.11 Coritra«<ir Signature 1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signator>'

1.13 SiatFXgcncy^ignauire ' '

6/4/20

1.14 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory

Christine Santaniello, Director, DEHS

1.15 Approval by the N.H. Department of Administration. Division of Personnel (ifapplicahle)

By: Director. On:

1.16 Approval by the Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution) (ifopplicohie)

■ By: Catherine Pinos On: 06/09/20

1.17 Approval by the Governor and Executive Council (ifapplicabh)

G&C Item number: G&C Meeting Date:
»  s.
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2. SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED. THc Stale of New
Hamp.shire, acting through the agency identified in block 1.1
C'Siote"), engages contractor identified in block 1.3
("Contractor") to perform, and tlic Contractor shall perform, the
work or sale of goods, or bi)ih. identified and more particularly
described in the attached EXMIBIT B which is incor|>orated
herein by reference ("Serx'ices").

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/QOMPLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, if applicable,
thi.s Agreement, and all obligations of the parties hcrcundcr. shall
become effective on the date the Governor and Executive
Council approve this Agreement as indicated in block 1.17,
unless no such approval is required, in nkIiIcIi case the Agreement
shall become effective on the date the Agreement is signed by
the Slate Agency as .shown in block 1.13 ("Eflcctivc Date").
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Scr\'iccs prior to the
EITcctivc Dale, all Services performed by the Contractor prior to
the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement docs not become
elTcctivc, the State shall have no liability to the Conlraeior,
including without limitation, any obligation to pay the
Coniruciof for any costs iticurred or Services performed.
Contractor must coinplctc all Services by the Completion Dale
specified in bkx:k 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hcrcundcr, including,
without limitation, the continuance of pa>nienis hereunder, are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation of
funds affected by any state or federal legislative or executive
action thai reduces, eliminates or otherwise modifies the
appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and
the Scope for Services provided in EXHIBIT B, in whole or in
part. In no event shall the State be liable for any payments
hcrcundcr in excess of such available appropriated funds. In the
event of a reduction or termination of appropriated funds, the
State shall have the right to withhold pa>wcnt until such funds
become available, if eycr, and shall have the right to reduce or
tcrininatc the Services under this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such reduction or iciniination.
The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other
account or. source to the. Account identified in block 1.6 in the
event funds in that Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/
payment.

5.1 The contract price, method of payntcni. and tennsofpayineiil
arc identified and more particularly described in EXHIBIT C
whicli is incorporated herein by reference.
5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be lite
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in (he
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete

compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State shall
have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract price.
5.3 The State reserx'es the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement those
liquidated amounts required of permitted by N.H. RSA 80:7
through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.
5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and noiwilhstunding unexpected cifeumstanees, in no
event shall the lota! of all payments authorized, or actually made
hereunder. exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block 1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
and REGULATIONS/EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the pcrlbrinancc of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all applicable statutes, laws,
regulations, and orders of federal, state, county or municipal
authorities which impose any obligation or duty upon the
Contractor, including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal
cmplo)iuent opportunity laws. In addition, if this Agreement i.s
funded in any part by monies of the United Stales, the Contractor
shall comply with all federal executive orders, rules, regulations
and statutes, and with any rules, regulations and guidelines as the
Stale or the United States issue to implement these regulations.
The Contractor .shall also comply with all applicable intellectual
property laws.
6.2 Dining the term of this Agreement, the Conti-actor shall not
discriminate against employees or applicants for cmplo>'mcnt
because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex, handicap, sexual
orientation, or national origin and will take affirmative action to
prevent such discrimination.
6.3. The Contractor agrees to permit the State or United States
access to any of the Contractor's books, records and accounts for
the purpose ofasccrtaining compliance with all rules, regulations
and orders, and the covenants, terms and conditions of this
Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide alfpcr-sonncl
nece.ssary to perform the Services. The Contiaclor warrants that
all personnel engaged in the Services shall be qualified to
perform the Services, and shall be properly licensed and
otherwise authorized to do so under all apitlicablc laws.
7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in \sTiiing. during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire, and
shall not permit any subcontractor or oihci' person, finii or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined cflbrt to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State employee
or official, who is materially involved in the procurement,
administration or performance of this Agreement. This
provision shall survive termination of this Agreement.
7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9. or his or her
successor, shall be the State's representative. In the event of any
dispute concciTiing the interpretation of this Agreement, the
Contracting Officer's decision shall be final for the State.
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8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hcrcundcr {"Evcitr
of Default'*):
8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;

8.1.2 failure to submit any report required Itcreunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition of
this Agreement.
8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State may
take anyone, or more, or all,of the following actions:
5.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and requiring it to be remedied vvithin, in the absence of
a greater or lesser specification oftimc, thirty (30) days from the
date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is not timely cured,
terminate this Agreement, effective two (2) da>'s afler giving the
Contractor notice of termination;

8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specil*ying ilic Event of
Default and suspending all pajniicnts to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the dale of such notice until such time as the Stale
dcicrmincs that the Contraclor has cured the Event of Default

shall never be paid to the Contnictor; '
8.2.3 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and set off against any other obligations the State may
owe to the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of
any Event of Default; and/or
8.2.4 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default, treat the Agreement as breached, terminate Uie
Agreement and pursue any of its remedies at law or in equity, or
both.

8.3; No faihirc by the State to enforce any provisions hereof after
any Event of Default shall be deemed a waiver ofits riglus with
regard to that Event of. Default, or any sub.sequeni Event of
Default. No express failure to enforce any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and
all of the provisions hereof upon any funlicr or other Event of
Default on the pan of the Contrucior.

9. TERMINATION,
9.1 Notwith.sianding paragraph 8, the State may. at its sole
discretion, terminate the Agreement for any reason, in whole or
in part, by thirty (30) days wriucn notice to the Contractor that
the Stale is exorcising its option to terminate the Agreement.
9.2 In the event of an early termination of this Agreement for
any reason other than the completion of the Ser\'iccs, the
Contractor shall, at the State's discretion, deliver to the

Contracting Officer, not later than fifteen (15) days after the date
of termination, a report ("Tennination Report") describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject matter,
content, and number of copies of the Termination Report shall
be identical to those of any Final Report described in the attached
EXHIBIT H. In addition, at the State's disCTCiion, the Contractor
shall, within 15 days of notice of early icnninalion, develop and

Page

submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the

Agreement.

10. DATA/ACCESS/CON'FIDENTIALITY/

PRESERVATION'.

10.1 As used in ihis Agreement, the word "data" shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during Ihc
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of. this
Agreement, including, but not limited to. all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses, graphic
rcprc-seniaiions, compulcr programs, computer printouts, notes,
letters, memoranda, papers, and documents, all whether
finished or unfinished.

10.2 All data and any property which has been received from"
ihc State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the propeny of the State, and
.shall be returned to the Stale upon demand or upon termination .
of this Agreement for any reason.
10.3 Confidentiality of data shall be gpvcrned by N.M. RSA
chapter 91 -A or other existing law, Disclosure of data requires
prior wTitien approval of the State.

11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. Inlhc

performance of this Agreement the Contrucior is in all respects
an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor an
employee of liic State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the Slate or receive any benefits, workers' compensation or
other emoluments provided by the Slate to its employees.

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION'/SUBCON'TRACTS.

12.1 The Contractor shall not assign, or othcrwi.sc tran.sfer any
iiilcrcsi in this Agrccmait wiihoni Ihc prior WTiiicn notice, which
shall be provided to the State at (cast fifteen (15) days prior to
the assignment, and a wriltcn consent of the State. For purposes
of this paragraph, a Change of Control shall constitute
assignment. "Change of Control" means (a) merger,
consolidation, or a trunsaetion or series of related transactions in

which a third party, together with its affiliaics. becomes the
direct or indirect owner of fi ft y percent (50%) or more of the
voting shares or similar equity itiicrcsls, or combined voting
power of the Contraclor. or (b) the sale of all or substantially all
ofthc a.sscts ofihc Contractor,

12.2 None of the Services shall be subcontracted by the
Contractor without prior wTiiten notice and consent of the State.
The State is entitled to copies of all subcontracts and assignment
agrccmcms and shall not bo bound by any provisions contained
in a subcontract or an assignment agreement to which it is not a
party.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. Unless otherwise exempted by law,
the Comracior .shall indemnify and hold harmless the State, its
officers and employees, from and against any and all claims,
liabilities and costs for any personal injur>' or property damages,
patent or copvTight infringement, or other claims asserted against
the State, its officers or employees, svhich arise out of (or which
may be claimed to arise out oO the acts or omission of tlic
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Coniracior, or subconlraciors. inciudiilg bui not limited to the
negliget\ce, reckless or imentional conduct. The State sliall not
be liable for any costs incurred by the Contractor arising under
this paragraph 13. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the sovereign
immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby reserved to the
State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall .survive the
termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 TTic Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
continuously maintain iti force, and shall require any
subcontractor or assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the
following insurance:
14.1.1 commercial general liability insurance against all claims
of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts of not
less than 51,000,000 per occurrence and $2,000,000 aggregate
or excess; and

14.1.2 special cnuse of loss coverage form covering all property
subject to subparagiaph 10.2 herein, in att amount not less than
S0% of the whole replacement value nf the property.
14.2 Tlic policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall be
on policy form.s and endorsements approved for use in the Slate
pf New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of Insurance, and
issued by insurers licensed in the State of New Hampshire.
14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Ofllccr
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a 'ccrtinc:uc(s) of
insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also fumish to the Contracting Ofliccr identified
in block 1.9, or his or licr successor, certillcaic(s) ofinsurancc
for all rcncwal(s) of insurance required under this Agreement no
Uuer than ten (10) daj-s prior to the expiration date of each
insurance policy. The ccriiflcatc(s) of insurance and any
renewals thereof shall be attached and arc incorporated herein by
reference.

15. WORKERS' COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees, ccriillcs
and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with or exempt
from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281 -A ( "^Vorkcrs'
Conipeiisoiiiiii'').
15.2 To the c.xtcni ihc.Conlraclor is subject to the requirements
of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor slial! maimain. and
require any subcontractor or assignee to secure and maintain,
payment of Workers* Compensation in connection with
activities which the person proposes to undertake pursuant to this
Agreement. The Contractor shall furnish the Contracting Ofllcer
identified in bl(x:k 1.9, or his other succc.ssor. proof of Workers*
Compensaiion in the manner described in N.H. RSA chapter
281-A and any applicable rcncwal(s) thereof, which shall be
attached and arc incorporated herein by reference. The State
shall not be responsible for pa)iueni of any Workers'
Compensation premiums or for any other claim or benefit for
Contractor, or any subcontractor or employee of Contractor,
which might arise under applicable State of New Hampshire
Workers' Compensation laws . in . connection with the
performance of the Services under this Agreement.

16. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the time
of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United States
Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses given in
blocks 1.2 and 1.4. herein.

17. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended, waived
or disehargcd only by an instrument in writing signed by the
parties hereto and only nfier approval of such amendment,
waiver or discharge by the Govcnior and Executive Council of
ihc Slate of New Hampshire unless no such approval is required
under the circumstances pursuant to State law. rule or policy.

18. CHOICE OF LAW AND FORUM. This Agreement shall
be governed, interpreted and construed in accordance with the
laws of the Stale of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the particsand their respective succc.ssors
and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement is the wording
chosen by the panics to cxprcs.s their mutual intent, and no rule
of construction shall be applied against or in favor of any party.
Any actions arising out of this A^ccmcni shall be brought and
maintained in New Hampshire Superior C'ouri which shall have
exclusive jurisdiction thereof,

19. CONFLICTING T.ERMS. In the event of a conflict
between ihc terms of this P-37 form (as modified in EXHIBIT
A) and/or attachments and amendment thereof, the terms of Ihc
P-37 (as modified in EXIIIBIT A) shall control.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
bcnefii any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to conl'er any such boiiefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement arc
for reference purpases only, and the words contained therein
shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or aid in the
iniciprcUiticMi, consii uclion or meaning of the provisions of this
Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional or modifying
provisions set forth in Ihc aiiachcd EXHIBIT A are incorporated
herein by reference.

23. SEVER^VBILI'n'. In the event any ofihc provisions of this
Agreement arc held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be
contrary to any slate or federal law, the remaining provisions of
this Agreement will remain in full force and effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may be
execulcd in a number of counierpart.s. each of which shall be
deemed an original, constitutes the entire agreement, and
understanding between the panics, and .supersedes all prior
agreements and understandings with respect to the subject matter
hereof.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Permanent Supportive Housing II Program

EXHIBIT A

REVISIONS TO STANDARD CONTRACT PROVISIONS

1. Revisions to Form P-37, General Provisions

1.1. Paragraph 3, Subparagraph 3.1, Effective Date/Completion of Services, is
•amended as follows:

3.1. Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, and
^  subject to the approval of the Governor and Executive Council of the State

of New Hampshire as indicated in block 1.17, this Agreement, and all
obligations of the parties hereunder, shall become effective on July 1,
2020. ("Effective Date").

1.2. Paragraph 3, Effective Date/Completion of Services, is amended by adding
subparagraph 3.3 as follows:

3.2. The parties may extend the Agreement for up to two (2) additional years
from the Completion Date, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of
services, available funding, agreement of the parties, and approval of the
Governor and Executive Council. j

1.3. Paragraph 12, Assignment/Delegation/Subcontracts, is amended by adding
subparagraph 12.3 as follows:

12.3. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual conditions as the
Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor
compliance with those conditions. The Contractor shall have written
agreements with all subcontractors, specifying the work to be performed
and how corrective action shall be managed if the subcontractor's
performance is inadequate. The Contractor shall manage the
subcontractor's performance on an ongoing basis and take corrective
action as necessary. The Contractor shall annually provide the State with
a list of all subcontractors provided for under this Agreement and notify
the State of any inadequate subcontractor performance.

SS-2020-BHS-09-PERMA-01 Exhibit A - Revisions to Standard Contract Provisions Contractor initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Permanent Supportive Housing 11 Program

EXHIBIT B

Scope of Services

1. statement of Work

1.1. The Contractor shall provide services in this agreement to a minimum of six (6)
households comprised of Individuals or families.

1.2. The Contractor shall ensure services are available in the Counties of Carroll, Coos
and Grafton.

1.3. For the purposes of this agreement, all references to days shall mean business
days.

1.4. For the purposes of this agreement, all references to business hours shall mean
. Monday through Friday from (8:00 AM to 4:00 PM), excluding state and federal

holidays.

1.5. Notwithstanding the confidentiality procedures established under 24 CFR Part
578.103(b), US Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD), the HUD
Office of the Inspector General, and the Comptroller General of the United States,
or any of their authorized representatives, must have the right of access to all
books, documents, papers, or other records of the Contractor that are pertinent to
the Continuum of Care (CoC) grant, in order to make audits, examinations,
excerpts, and transcripts. These rights of access are not limited to the required
retention period, but last as long as the records are retained.

r

1.6. The Contractor shall adhere to federal and state financial and confidentiality laws,
and comply \with the program narratives, budget detail and narrative, and all terms
and conditions, and amendments thereto, as set forth in the applicable Notice of
Funding Available (NOFA) CoC Project Application.approved by HUD.

1.7. The Contractor shall provide services according to the Department of Housing and
Urban Development (HUD) regulations outlined in Public Law 102.-550 and 24 CFR
Part 578 CoC Program and other written, appropriate HUD policies and directives.

1.8. The Contractor shall ensure all programs are licensed to provide client level data
into the New Hampshire Homeless Management Information System (NH HMIS),
or into a comparable database, per 24 CFR 578. Programs shall follow NH HMIS
policy, including specific .information required for data entry, accuracy of data
entered, and time required for data entry.

t

1.9. The Contractor shall cooperate fully with and answer all questions related to this
contract from representatives of the State or Federal agencies who may conduct
periodic observation and review of performance, activities and an inspection of
records and documents.

1.10. The Contractor shall support the primary goal of this program, which is to facilitate
the movement of homeless and chronically homeless individuals and families to
permanent housing and maxirnum self-sufficiency. .

1.11. The Contractor shall utilize the NH HMIS as the primary reporting tool for outcomes
and activities of shelter and housing programs funded through this cohtr^t.

SS-2020-BHS-C9-PERMA-01 Conlractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Permanent Supportive Housing I) Program .

EXHIBIT B

1.12. The Contractor shall provide a Permanent Supportive Housing Program that
serves a total of six (6) households utilizing six (6) scattered site apartments in the
Counties of Carroll, Coos and Grafton, with a focus, on families experiencing
homelessness, or who may have experienced chronic homelessness. The
Contractor shall ensure the program includes, but is not limited to:

"1.12.1. Utilization of the Housing First model that ensures:

1.12.1.1. Barriers to entering housing are not imposed beyond those required
by regulation or statute; and

1.12.1.2. Participation will only terminate for the most severe, reasons, after
available options to help a participant maintain housing are
exhausted.

1.12.2. Development of a stabilization plan and crisis management plan with the
participant at intake and, at a minimum, annually.

,  1.12.3. ' Development of an ongoing Assessment of Housing and Supportive
Services in order to provide assistance to the participant with obtaining the
skills necessary to live in the community independently.

1.13. The Contractor shall participate in its regional and statewide Coordinated Entry
system.

1.14. The Contractor shall establish and maintain standard operating procedures to
ensure CoC program funds are used in accordance with 24 CFR 578 and shall
establish and maintain sufficient records to enable HUD and BHS to determine
Contractor requirerrient compliance, including:

1.14.1. Continuum of Care Records. The Contractor shall maintain the following
documentation related to establishing and operating a CoC:

1.14.1.1. Records of Homeless Status. The Contractor shall maintain
acceptable evidence of homeless status in accordance with 24 CFR
576.500(b);

1.14.1.2. Records of at Risk of Homelessness Status. The Contractor shall
maintain records that establish "at risk of homelessness" status of
each individual or family who receives CoC homelessness prevention
assistance, as identified in 24 CFR 576.500(c); and

1.14.1.3. Records of Reasonable Belief of Imminent Threat of Harm. The
Contractor shall maintain documentation of each program participant
who moved to a different CoC due to imminent threat of further
domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking, as
defined in 24 CFR 578.51(c)(3). The Contractor shall retain
documentation that includes, but is not limited to:

1.14.1.3.1. The original incidence of domestic violence, dating violence,
sexual assault, or stalking, only if the original violence is not
already documented in the program participant's case file.
This may be written observation of the housing or^rvice
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provider; a letler or other documentation from a victim
service provider, soda! worker, legal assistance provider,
pastoral counselor, mental health provider, or other
professional from whom the victim has sought assistance;
medical or dental records; court records or law enforcement
records; or written certification by the program participant to
whom the violence occurred or by the head of household;
and - , ■ '

.1.14.1.3.2. The reasonable belief of imminent threat of further domestic
violehce, dating violence, or sexual assault or stalking,
which would include threats from a third-party, such as a
friend or family member of the perpetrator of the violence.
This may be written observation by the housing or service
provider; a letter or other documentation from a victim
service provider, social worker, legal assistance provider,
pastoral counselor, mental health provider, or other
professional from whom the victim has sought assistance;
current restraining order; recent court order or other court
records; law enforcement report or records; communication
records from the perpetrator of the violence or family
members or friends of the perpetrator of the violence,
including emails, voicemails, text message.s, and social
media posts; or a written certification by the program
participant to whom the violence occurred or the head of
household.

1.14.1.4. Records of Annual Income. For each program participant who
receives housing assistance where rent or an occupancy charge is
paid by. the program participant, the Contractor shall keep the
following documentation of annual income:

1.14.1.4.1. Income evaluation form specified by HUD and completed by
the Contractor;

1.14.1.4.2. Source ddcuments, which may include the most recent
wage statement, unemployment compensation statement,
public benefits, statement, and bank statements for the
assets held by the program participant and income received
before the date of the evaluation; and

1.14.1.4.3. To the extent that source documents are unobtainable, a
written statement by a relevant third party, which may
include an employer or a government benefits.administrator,
or the written certification by the Contractor's intake staff of
the oral verification by the relevant third party of the income
the program participant received over the most recent
period; or

SS-202(3-BHS-09-PERMA-01 Contractor Initials -
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1.14.1.4.4. To the exient that source documents and third-party

verification are unobtainable, the written certification by the
program participant of the amount of income that the
program participant is reasonably expected to receive over
the three (3) month period following the evaluation.

1.14.1.5. Program Participant Records. In addition to evidence of

homelessness status or at-risk-of-homelessness status, ' as

applicable, the Contractor shall keep records for each program
participant that document:

1.14.1.5.1. The services and assistance provided to that program
participant, including evidence that the Contractor
conducted an annual assessment of services for those

program participants that remain In the program for more
than a year and adjusted the service package accordingly,
and including case management services as provided in 24
CFR 578,37(a)(1)(ii)(F):and

1.14.1.5.2. Where applicable, compliance with the termination of
assistance requirement in 24 CFR 578.91.

1.14.1.6. Housina Standards. The Contractor shall retain documentation of
compliance with the housing standards in 24 CFR 578.75(b),
including inspection reports.

1.14.1.7. Services Provided. The Contractor shall document the types of
supportive services provided under the Contractor's program and the
amounts spent on those services. The Contractor shall keep
documentation that the records were reviewed at least annually and
that the service package offered to program participants was adjusted
as necessary.

1.15. The.Contractor shall maintain records that document compliance with:

1.15.1. The Organizational conflict-of-interest requirements in 24 CFR 578.95(c);

1.15.2. The Continuum of Care Board conflict-of-interest requirements in 24 CFR
578.95(b); and

1.15.3. The Other Conflicts requirements in 24 CFR 578.95(d).

1.16. The Contractor shall develop, implement and retain a copy of the personal conflict-
of-interest policy that complies with the requirements in 24 CFR 578.95, including
records supporting any exceptions to the personal conflict-of-interest prohibitions.

1.17. - The Contractor shall comply and retain documentation of compliance with:

1.17.1. The Homeless Participation requirements in accordance with 24 CFR
578.75(g):

1.17.2. . The Faith-based Activities requirements in accordance with 24 CFR
578.87(b):
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1.17.3. Affirmatively Furthering Fair Housing by maintaining copies of all marketing,
outreach, and other materials used to inform eligible persons of the program

■  in accordance with 24 CFR 578.93(c):

1.17.4. Other Federal Reouirements in 24 CFR 578.99, as applicable;

1.17.5. Other Records Specified bv HUD. The Contractor must keep other records
as specified by HUD; and

1.17.6. Procurement Requirements in 24 CFR 85.36 and 24 CFR part 84.

1.18. Confidentiality. In addition to meeting specific confidentiality and security
requirements for HMIS data (76 FR 76917), the Contractor shall develop and
implement written procedures to ensure:

1.18.1. All records containing protected identifying Information of any individual or
family who applies for Continuum of Care assistance are to be kept secure
and confidential;

'1.18.2. The address or location of any family violence project, assisted with
Continuum of Care funds, are not to be made public, except with written
authorization of the person responsible for the operation of the project; and

1.18.3. The address or location Of any housing unit of a program participant is not to
be made public, except as provided under a preexisting privacy policy of the
recipient or subrecipient and consistent with State and local laws regarding
privacy and obligations of confidentiality.

1.19. The Contractor shall have appropriate levels of staff to attend all meetings or
trainings requested by BHS, including training in data security and confidentiality,
according to state and federal laws. To the extent possible, BHS shall notify the
Contractor of the need to attend such meetings five (5) working days in advance
of each meeting.

1.20. The Contractor shall inform BHS of any staffing changes within thirty (30) days of
the change.

1.21. In the event of early termination of the Agreement, the Contractor "shall, within 15
days of notice of early termination, develop and submit to the State a Transition
PlanTor services under the Agreement, including but not lirpited to. identifying the
present and future needs of clients receiving services under the Agreement and
establishing a process to meet those needs.

1.21.1. The Contractor shall fully cooperate with the State and shall promptly provide
detailed information to support the Transition Plan including, but not limited
to, any Information or data requested by the State relative to the termination
of the Agreement and Transition Plan and shall provide ongoing
communication and revisions of the Transition Plan to the State, as
requested.

1.21.2. In the event that services under the Agreement, including but not limited to
clients receiving services under the Agreement, are transitioned to having
services delivered by another entity including contracted provides or the
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State, the Contractor shall provide a process for uninterrupted delivery of
services in the Transition Plan.

1.21.3. The Contractor shall establish a method of notifying clients and other,
affected individuals about the transition. The Contractor shall include the

proposed communications in its Transition Plan submitted to the State, as
described above.

2. Exhibits Incorporated

2.1. The Contractor shall manage all confidential data related to this Agreement in
accordance with the terms of Exhibit K, DHHS Information Security Requirements.

2.2: The Contractor shall comply with all Exhibits D through K, which are attached
hereto and Incorporated by reference herein.

3. Reporting Requirements

3.1. The Contractor shall submit, an Annual Performance Report (APR) to the
Department within thirty (30) days after the Contract/Grant Completion Date on the
form required, or specified, by the Department.

3.2. The Contractor shall ensure the APR Is submitted to:

NHDHHS

Bureau of Housing Supports
129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301
\

3.3. The Contractor shall ensure the APR includes a summary of aggregate results of
the Project Activities, consistent with the format proposed in the Contractpr!s
Project Application, submitted to HUD for the relevant fiscal year Notice of Funding
Availability (NOFA).

3.4. The Contractor shall submit other reports as requested by the Department in
compliance with NH HMiS policy. ^

4. Performance Measures

4.1. The Contractor shall actively and regularly collaborate with the Department to
enhance contract management, improve results, and adjust program delivery and
policy based on successful outcomes, including annual performance monitoring of
all programs.

4.2. The Contractor shall abide by the performance measures as set forth in all
applicable HUD regulations including, but not limited to:

4.2.1. 24 CFR Part 578 CoC Prograni; ■

4.2.2. Public Law 102-550; and

4.2.3. CoC approved performance measures for annual monitoring.

5. Additional Terms

5.1. Impacts Resulting from Court Orders or Legislative Changes

SS-2020-BHS-09-PERMA-01 Contractor Initials
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5.1.1. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future state or federal legislation or
court orders may have an impact on the Services described herein, the State
has the right to modify Service priorities and expenditure requirements under
this Agreement so as to achieve compliance therewith.

5.2. Culturally and Linguistically Appropriate Services (CLAS)

5.2.1. The Contractor shall submit and comply with a detailed description of the
language assistance services they will provide to persons with limited
English proficiency and/or hearing impairment to ensure meaningful access
to their programs and/or services within ten (10) days of the contract effective
date.

5.3. Credits and Copyright Ownership

5.3.1. All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other materials
prepared during or resulting from the performance of the services of the
Contract shall include the following statement, "The preparation of this
(report, document etc.) was financed under a Contract with the State of New
Hampshire. Department of Health'and Human Services, with funds provided
in part by the State of New Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as
were available or required, e.g.. the United States Department of Health and
Human Services."

\  '

5.3.2. All materials produced or purchased under the contract shall have prior
approval from the Departmerit before printing, production, distribution or use.

5.3.3. The Department shall retain copyright ownership for any and all original
materials produced, including, but not limited to:

5.3.3.1. Brochures.

5.3.3.2. Resource directories.

5.3.3.3. Protocols or guidelines.

5.3.3.4. Posters.

5.3.3.5. Reports.

5.3.4. The Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the
contract without prior written approval from the Department.-

5.4. Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations

5.4.1. ■ In the operation of any facilities for providing services, the Contractor shall
comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal, state, county and
municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public Officer or officers
pursuant to laws which shall impose an order or duty upon the contractor
with respect to the operation'of the facility or the provision of the services at
such facility. If any governmental license or permit shall be required for the
operation of the said facility or the performance of the said services, the

■ Contractor will procure said license or permit, and will at all times comply
with the terms and conditions of each such license or permit. In ccmnection
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with the foregoing requirernents, the Contractor hereby covenants and
agrees that, during the term of this Contract the facilities shall comply with
all rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of the Fire
Marshal and the local fire protection agency, and shall be in conformance
with local building and zoning codes, by-laws and regulations.

5.5. Eligibility Deterrhinatlons

5.5.1. If the Contractor is permitted to determine the eligibility of individuals, youth,
and/ or family such eligibility verifications shall be made in accordance with

applicable federal and state laws, regulations, orders, guidelines, policies
and procedures.

5.5.2. Eligibility verifications shall be made on forms provided, or required by the
Department for that purpose and shall be made and remade, or reissued at
such times as are prescribed by the Department.

5.5.3. In addition to the verification forms required by the Department, the
Contractor shall maintain a data file on each participant of services
hereunder, which file shall include all information necessary to support an
eligibility verification and such other information as the Department requests.
The Contractor shall furnish the Department with all forms and
documentation regarding eligibility verifications that the Department may
request or require.

5.5.4. The Contractor understands that all applicants for services hereunder, as
well as Individuals declared ineligible have a right to a fair hearing regarding
that determination. The Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that all
applicants for services shall be permitted to fill out an application form and
that each applicant or re-applicant shall be informed of his/her right to a fair
hearing in accordance with Department regulations.

6. Records

6.1. The Contractor shall keep records that include, but are not limited to:

6.1.1. Books, records, documents and other electronic or physical data evidencing
and reflecting all costs and other expenses incurred by the Contractor in the
performance of the Contract, and all income received or collected by the
Contractor.

6.1.2. All records must be maintained in accordance with accounting procedures
and practices, which sufficiently and properly reflect all such costs and
expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and to include,
without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original evidence of costs
such as purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for
materials, inventories, valuations of in-kind contributions, labor time cards,
payrolls, and other records requested or required by the Department.

6.1.3. Statistical, enrollment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
services, which records shall include all records of application and etigibility
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(including all forms required lo determine eligibility for each such recipient),
records regarding the provision of services and all invoices submitted to the
Department to obtain payment for such services.

6.2. The Contractor shall ensure all records, originals or copies made by microfilming,
photocopying, or other similar methods, pertaining to Continuum of Care funds,
are retained for five (5) years following the Contract Completion Date and receipt
of.final payment by the Contractor, unless records are otherwise required to,be
maintained for a period in excess of the five (5) year period according to state or
federal law of regulation.

6.3. During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder, the
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and
any of their designated representatives shall have access to all reports and records
maintained pursuant to the Contract for purposes of audit, examination, excerpts
and transcripts. Upon the purchase by the Department of the maximum number of
units provided for in the Contract and upon payment of the price limitation
hereunder, the Contract and all the obligations of the parties hereunder (except
such obligations as. by the terms of the Contract are to be performed after the end
of the term of this Contract and/or survive the termination of the Contract) shall
terminate, provided however, that if, upon review of the Final Expenditure Report
the Department shall disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as costs
hereunder the Department ,shall retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the
amount of such expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the
Contractor.
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Payment Terms

1. This Agreement is funded by 100% Federal funds from the US Department of
Housing and Urban Development {HUD), Continuum of Care (CoC) Program, as
awarded on March 13. 2020, Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA)
#14.267, Federal Award Identification Number (FAIN #) NH0120T1T001900.

2. For the purposes of this Agreement:

2.1. The Department has identified the Contractor as a Subrecipient in accordance
with 2 CFR 200.330.

2.2. The de minimis Indirect Cost Rate of 10% applies in accordance with 2 CFR
§200.414.

2.3. The Department has identified this Contract as NON-R&D, in accordance with
2 CFR §200.87.

3. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures incurred in
the fulfillment of this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with the approved line
item, as .specified in Exhibit C-1, Budget.

4. The Contractor shall submit an invoice and required supported documentation in a
form satisfactory to the State by the fifteenth (15th) working day of the following
month, which identifies and requests reimbursement for authorized expenses
incurred in the prior month. The Contractor shall ensure the Invoice is completed,
dated and returned to the Department in order to initiate payment.

5. The Contractor shall keep records of their activities related to Department programs
and services, and shall provide such records, and any additional financial
inforrnation, if requested by the Department to verify expenses.

6. In lieu of hard copies, all invoices may be assigned an electronic signature and
emailed to housinQSUDDortsinvoices@dhhs.nh.qov or Invoices may be mailed to:

Financial Manager
Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

7. The State shall make payment to the Contractor within thirty (30) days of receipt of
each Invoice, subsequent to approval of the submitted invoice and if sufficient funds
are available, subject to Paragraph 4 of the General Provisions Form Number P-37
of this Agreement.

8. The final invoice shall be due to the State no later than thirty^(30) days after the
contract completion date specified in Form P-37, General Provisions Block 1.7
Completion Date.

9. The Contractor must provide the services in Exhibit 8, Scope of Services, in
compliance with funding requirements.
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10. The Contractor agrees that funding under this Agreement may be withheld, in whole
or in part, in the event of non-compliance with the terms and conditions of Exhibit B,
Scope of Services.

11. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that funding
under this agreement may be withheld, in whole or in part, in the event of non-
compliance with any Federal or State law, rule or regulation applicable to the
services provided, or if the said services or products have not been satisfactorily
completed in accordance with the terms and conditions of this agreement.

12. Notwithstanding Paragraph 18 of the General Provisions Form P-37, changes
limited to adjusting amounts within the price limitation and adjusting encumbrances
between State Fiscal Years and budget class lines through the Budget Office may
be made by written agreement of both parties, without obtaining approval of the
Governor and Executive Council, if needed and justified.

13. Audits

13.1. The Contractor is required to submit an annual audit to the Department if .any of
the following conditions exist;

13.1.1. Condition A - The Contractor expended $750,000 or more in federal
funds received as a subrecipient pursuant to 2 CFR Part 200, during
the most recently completed fiscal year.-

- 13.1.2. Condition B - The. Contractor is subject to audit pursuant to .the
requirements of NH R'SA 7:28, lll-b, pertaining to charitable
organizations receiving support of $1,000,000 or more.

13.1.3. Condition C - The Contractor is a public company and required by
Security and.Exchange Commission (SEC) regulations to submit an
annual financial audit.

13.2. If Condition A-exists, the Contractor shall submit an annual single audit
performed by an independent Certified Public Accountant (CPA) to the
Department within 120 days after the close of the Contractor's fiscal year,
conducted in accordance with the requirements of 2 CFR Part 200, Subpart F
of the Uniform Administrative Requirements. Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federal awards.

13.3. If Condition B or Condition C exists, the Contractor shall submit an annual
financial audit performed by an independent CPA within 120 days after the close
of the Contractor's fiscal year.

13.4. Any Contractor that receives an amount equal to or greater than $250,000 from
the Department during a single fiscal year, regardless of the funding source,
may be required, at a minimum, to submit annual financial audits performed by
an independent CPA if the Department's risk assessment determination
indicates the Contractor is high-risk.
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13.5. In addition to, and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the Contract, It is
understood and agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shall be held liable
for any state or federal audit exceptions and shall return to the Department all
payments made under the Contract to which exception has been taken, or which
have been disallowed because of such an exception.

14. Proiect Costs:

14.1. Project Costs: As used in this Agreement, the term "Project Costs" shall mean
all expenses directly or indirectly Incurred by the Contractor in the performance
of the Project Activities, as determined by the State to be eligible and allowable
for payment in accordance with Public Law 102-550 as well as allowable cost
standards set forth in 2 CFR part 200 as revised from time to time and with the
rules, regulations, and guidelines established by the State. Nonprofit
subcontractors shall meet the requirements of 2 CFR part 200.

14.2. Continuum of Care funds may be used to pay for eligible costs listed in 24 CFR
578.39 through 578.63 when used to establish and operate projects under five
program components: permanent housing; transitional housing; supportive
services only; HMIS; and, in some cases, homeless prevention. Administrative
costs are eligible for all components. All components are subject to the
restrictions on combining funds for certain eligible activities in a single project
found in 24 CFR 578.87(c).

15. Match Funds:

15.1. The Contractor shall provide sufficient matching funds, as required by HUD
regulations and policies described in 24 CFR 578.73.

15.2. Match requirements are to be documented with each payment request.

15.3. The Contractor shall match all grant funds, except for leasing funds, with no less
than twenty-five (25) percent of funds or - in-kind contributions from other
sources. Cash match must be used for the cost of activities that are eligible
under subpart D of 24 CFR 578. The Contractor shall:

15.3.1. Maintain records of the source and use of contributions made to
satisfy the match requirement in 24 CFR 578.73;

15.3.2. Ensure records indicate the grant and fiscal year for which each
matching contribution is counted;

15.3.3. Ensure records include methodologies that specify how the values
of third party in-kind contributions were derived; and

15.3.4. Ensure records include, to the extent feasible, volunteer services
that are supported by the same methods used to support the
allocation of regular personnel costs.

Tri-Counly Community Action Program. Inc. Exhibit 0 Contractor Initials —

SS-2020-BHS-09-PERMA-01 Page 3 of! 2 Dale

Rev. 01/08/19



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Permanent Supportive Housing II Program

EXHIBIT C

16. Payment of Project Costs:

16.1. The Contractor shall only be reimbursed for those costs designated as eligible
and allowable costs as stated in Section 18. Expense Eligibility. Exhibit C. The
Contractor must have written approval from the State prior to billing for any other
expenses.

16.2. Payment of Project Costs shall b'e made through the utilization of funds as
provided through the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development Title
XIV Housing programs under the Homeless Emergency Assistance and Rapid
Transition to Housing Act (HEARTH Act), Subtitle A-Housing Assistance (Public
Law 102-550), in an amount not to exceed as specified in Form P-37, General
Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation.

17. Review of the State. Disallowance of Costs:

17.1. At any time during the performance of the Services, and upon receipt of the
Annual Perforrriance Report, Termination Report or Audited Financial Report,
the State may review all Project Costs incurred by the Contractor and all
payments made to date.

17.2. Upon such review, the State shall disallow any items or expenses that are not
determined to be allowable or are deterhnined to be in excess of actual
expenditures, and shall, by written notice specifying the disallowed
expenditures, inform the Contractor of any such disallowance.

17.3. If the State disallows.costs for which payment has not yet been made, it shall
refuse to pay such.costs. Any amounts awarded to the Contractor pursuant to
this Agreement are subject to recapture.

18. Expense Elioibilitv

18.1. Operating Expenses;

18.1.1. Eligible operating expenses include:

18.1.1.1. Maintenance and repair of-housing;

18.1.1.2. Property taxes and insurance (including property and car):

18.1.1.3. Scheduled payments to reserve for replacement of major systems
of the housing (provided that the payments must be based on the

• useful life of the system and expected replacement cost);

18:1.1.4. . Building security for a structure where more than fifty (50) percent
of the units or area is paid for with grant funds;

18.1.1.5. Utilities, including electricity, gas and water; and

18.1.1.6. Furniture and equiprhenl.

18.1.2. Ineligible costs include:

18.1.2.1. Rental assistance and operating costs in the same project;

.. ^
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18.1.2.2. Operating costs of emergency shelter and supportive service-only
facilities; and

18.1.2.3. Maintenance and repair,of housing where the costs of maintaining
and repairing the housing are included in the lease.

18.2. Supportive Semces

18.2.1. Eligible supportive services costs must comply with all HUD regulations in
24 CFR 578.53, and are available to individuals actively participating In the
perrnanent housing program.

18.2.2. Eligible costs shall include:

18.2.2.1. Annual assessment of Service Needs. The costs of assessment
required by 578.53(a) (2);

18.2.2.2. Assistance with moving costs. Reasonable one-lime moving costs
are eligible and include truck rental and hiring a moving company;

18.2.2.3. Case management. The costs of assessing, arranging,
coordinating, and monitoring the delivery of individualized services
to meet the needs of the program participant(s) are eligible costs;

18.2.2.4. Child Care. The costs of establishing and operating child care, and
providing child-care vouchers, for ctiildren from families
experiencing homelessness, including providing meals.and snacks,
and comprehensive and coordinated developmental activities are
eligible;

18.2.2.5. Education Services. The costs of improving knowledge and basic
educational skills are eligible;

18.2.2.6. Employment assistance and job training. The costs of establishing
and operating employment assistance and job, training programs
are eligible, including classroom, online and/or computer instruction,
on-the-job instruction, services that assist individuals in securing
employment, abquiring learning skills, and/or increasing earning
potential. The cost of providing reasonable stipends to program
participants in erripioyment assistance and job training programs is
also an eligible cost;

18.2.2.7. Food. The cost of providing meals or groceries to program
participants is eligible;

18.2.2.8. Housing search and counseling services. Costs of assisting eligible
program participants to locate, obtain, and.retain suitable housing
are eligible;

18.2.2.9. Legal services. Eligible costs are the fees charged by licensed
attorneys and by person(s) under the supervision of licensed
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attorneys, for advice and representation in matters that interfere with
homeless individual or family's ability to obtain and retain housing;

18.2.2.10. Life Skills training. The costs of teaching critical life management
skills that may never have been learned or have been lost during
course of physical or mental illness, domestic violence, substance
abuse, and homelessness are eligible. These services must be
necessary to assist the program participant to function
independently in the community. Component life skills training are
the budgeting of resources and money management, household
management, conflict management, shopping for food and other
needed items, nutrition, the use of public transportation, and parent
training;

18.2.2.11. Mental Health Services. Eligible costs are the direct outpatient
treatment of mental health conditions that are provided-by licensed
professionals. Component services are crisis interventions;
counseling; individual, family, or group therapy sessions; the
prescription of psychotropic medications or explanations about the
use and management of medications; and combinations of
therapeutic approaches to address multiple problems;

18.2.2.12. Outpatient health services. Eligible costs are the direct outpatient
treatment of medical conditions when provided by licensed medical
professionals;

18.2;2.13. Outreach Services. The costs of activities to engage persons for the
purpose of providing immediate support and intervention, as well as
identifying potential program participants, are eligible;

18.2.2.14. , Substance abuse treatment services. The costs of program
participant intake and assessment, outpatient treatment, group and
individual counseling, and drug testing are eligible. Inpatient
detoxification and other inpatient drug or alcohol treatment are
ineligible;

18.2.2.15. Transportation Services are described in 24CFR 578(e) (15);

18.2.2.16. Utility Deposits. This form of assistance consists of paying for utility
deposits. Utility deposits must be one-time, paid to utility companies:

18.2.2.17. Direct provision of services. If the service described in 24GFR
■ 578.53(e) (1) - (16) of this section is being directly delivered by the
recipient or subrecipient, eligible costs for those services are
described in 24 CFR 578(e) (17);

18.2.2.18. Ineligible costs. Any cost not described as eligible costs under this
section is not an eligible cost of providing supportive services using
Continuum of Care program funds. Staff training and costs of

Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. ExhibiiC ContraciorlniUats.
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obtaining professional licensure or certifications needed to provide
supportive services are not eligible costs; and

18.2.2.19. Special populations. All eligible costs are eligible to the same extent
for program participants who are unaccompanied horneless youth;
persons living with HIV/AIDS; and victims.of domestic violence,
dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking.

18.3. Rental Assistance

18.3.1. Grant funds may be used for rental assistance for homeless individuals
and families.

18.3.2. Rental assistance cannot be provided to a program participant who is
already receiving rental assistance, or who is living in a housing unit
receiving rental assistance or operating assistance through other federal.
State, or local sources.

18.3.3. Rental assistance must be administered in accordance with the policies
and procedures established by the Continuum as set forth in 24 CFR
578.7(a) (9) and 24 CFR 578'.51. and may be:

18.3.3.1. Short term, up to'3 months of rent;

18.3.3.2. Medium term, for 3-24 months; or

18.3.3.3. Long-term, for longer than 24 months.

18.3.4. Grant funds may be used for security deposits in an amount not to exceed
2 months of rent.

18.3.5. An advance payment of the last month's rent may be provided to the
landlord, in addition to the security deposit and payment of first month's
rent.

18.3.6. Rental assistance will only be provided for a unit if the rent is reasonable,
as determined by the Contractor, in relation to rents being charged for
comparable unassisted units, taking into account the location, size, type,
quality, amenities, facilities, and management and maintenance of each
unit.

18.3.7. The Contractor may use grant funds in an amount not to exceed one
month's rent to pay for any damage to housing due to the action of a
program participant. For Leasing funds only: Property damages rnay be
paid only from funds paid to the landlord from security deposits.

18.3.8. Housing must be in compliance with all State and local housing codes,
licensing requirements, the Lead-Based Paint Poisoning Prevention Act,
and any other requirements of the jurisdiction in which the housing is
located regarding the condition of the structure and operation of the
housing or services.

Tri-County Community Action Program. Inc. Exhibit C Contractor Initials
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18.3.9. The Contractor shall provide one of the following types of rental assistance;
Tenant-based, Project-based, or Sponsor-based rental assistance as
described In 24 CFR 578.51.

18.3.9.1. Tenant-based rental assistance is rental assistance in which

program participants choose housing of an appropriate size in which
to reside.. When necessary to facilitate the coordination of
supportive services, recipients and subrecipients may require
program participants to live in a specific area for their entire period
of participation, or in a specific structure for the first year and in a
specific area for the remainder of their period of participation. Short
and medium term rental assistance provided under the Rapid Re-
Housing program component must be tenant based rental
assistance.

18.3.9.2. Sponsor-based rental assistance is provided through contracts
between the recipient and sponsor organization. A sponsor may be
a private, nonprofit organization, or a community mental health
agency established as a public nonprofit organization. Program
participants must reside in housing owned or leased by the sponsor.

18.3.9.3. Project-based rental assistance is provided through a contract with
the owner of an existing structure, where the owner agrees to lease
the subsidized units to program participants. Program participants
will not retain rental assistance if they move.

18.3.9.4. For project-based, sponsor-based, or tenant-based rental
assistaince, program participants must enter into a lease agreement
for a term of at least one year, which is terminable for cause. The
leases must be automatically renewable upon expiration for terms
that are a minimum of one month long, except on prior notice by
either party.

18.4. Administrative Costs:

18.4.1. Eligible administrative costs include:

18.4.1.1. The Contractor may use funding awarded under this part, for the
payment of project administrative costs related to the planning and
execution of Continuum of Care activities. This does not include

staff and overhead costs directly related to carrying out activities
eligible under 24 CFR 578.43 through 578.57, because those costs
are eligible as part of those activities; and

18.4.1.2. General management, oversight, and coordination. Costs of overall
program management, coordination, monitoring and evaluation.
These costs include, but are not limited to. necessary expendijures
for the following:

Tri-Courily Comrnunity Action Program, Inc. Exhibit C Contractor Initials,
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18.4.1.3. Salaries, wages, and related costs of the staff of the contractor's, or
other staff engage in program administration.

18.4.1.3.1. In charging costs to this category, the contractor may Include
the entire salary, wages, and related costs allocable to the
program of each person whose primary responsibilities with
regard to the program, involve program administration
assignments, or the pro rata share of the salary, wages, and
related costs of each person whose job includes any program
administration assignments. The Contractor may only use one
of these methods for each fiscal year grant. Program
administration assignments include the following:

18.4.1.3.1.1. Preparing program budgets and schedules, and
amendments to those budgets and schedules;

18.4.1.3.1.2. Developing systems for assuring compliance with
program requirements;

18.4.1.3.1.3. Developing interagency agreements and agreements
with subrecipients and contractors to carry out program
activities;

18.4.1.3.1.4. Monitoring program activities for progress and
compliance with program requirements;

18.4.1.3.1.5. Preparing reports and other documents related to the
program for submission to HUD;

18.4.1.3.1.6. Coordinating the solution of audit and monitoring
findings;

18.4.1.3.1.7. Preparing reports and other documents directly related
to the program submission to HUD;

18.4.1.3.1.8. Evaluating program results against stated objectives;

18.4.1.3.1.9. Managing or supervising persons whose primary
responsibilities with regard to the program include such
assignments as those described in sections
20.5.1.3.1.1. through 20.5.1.3.1.8. above. Exhibit C,
Payment Terms.

■  18.4.1.3.1.10. Travel costs incurred for official business in carrying
out the program;

18.4.1.3.1.11. Administrative services performed under third party
contracts or agreements, including such services as
general legal services, accounting services, and audit
services:

jj/U
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EXHIBIT C

18.4.1.3.1.12. Other costs for goods and services required for
administration of the program, including such goods
and services as rental or purchase of equipment,
insurance, utilities, office supplies, and rental and
maintenance, but not purchase, of office space:

18.4.1.3.1.13. Training on Continuum of Care requirements. Costs of
providing training on Continuum of Care requirements
and attending HUD-Sponsored Continuum of Care
trainings; and

18.4.1.3.1;14. Environmental review. Qosts of carrying out the
environmental review responsibilities under 24 CFR
578.31.

18.5. Leasing;

When the Contractor is leasing the structure, or portions thereof, grant funds
may be used to pay for 100 percent of the costs of leasing a structure or
structures, or portions thereof, to provide housing or supportive services to
homeless persons for up to three (3) years! Leasing funds may not be used
to lease units or structures owned by the Contractor, their parent
organization, any other related organization(s), or organizations, that are
members of a partnership, where the partnership owns the structure, unless
HUD authorized an exception for good cause.

18.5.1. Requirements:

18.5.1.1. Leasing structures. When grants are used to pay rent for all or part
of a structure or structures, the rent paid must be reasonable in
relation to rents being charged in the area for comparable space. In
addition, the rent paid may not exceed rents currently being charged
by the same owner.for comparable unassisted space.

18,5.1.2: Leasing individual units. When the grants are used to pay rent for
individual housing units, the rent paid must reasonable In relation to
rents being charged for comparable units, taking into account the
location, size, type, quality, amenities, facilities, and management
services. In addition, the rents may not exceed rents currently being
charged for comparable units, and the rent paid may not exceed
HUD-determined fair market rents.

18.5.1.3. Utilities. If electricity, gas, and water are included In the rent, these
utilities may be paid from leasing funds, if utilities, are not provided
by landlord, these utility costs are operating costs, except for
supportive service facilities. If the structure,is being used as a

. supportive service facility, then these utility costs are a supportive
service cost.

Tri-Counly Community Action Program. Inc. Exhibit C Comraclor initials .
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18.5.1.4. Security deposits and first and last month's rent. The Contractor
may use grant funds to pay security deposits, in an amount not to
exceed 2 months of actual rent. An advance payment of last month's
rent may be provided to the landlord in addition to security deposit
and payment of the first month's rent.

18.5.1.5. Occupancy agreements and subleases. Occupancy agreements
and subleases are required as specified in 24 CFR 578.77(a).

18.5.1.6. Calculation of occupancy charges and rent. Occupancy charges
and rent from program participants must be calculated as provided,
in 24 CFR 578.77.

18.5.1.7. Program income: Occupancy charges and rent collected from
program participants are program income and may be used as
provided under 24 CFR 578.97.

18.5.1.8. Transition. Refer to 24CFR 578.49(b)(8)

18.5.1.9. Rent paid may only reflect actual costs and must be reasonable in
comparison to rents charged in the area for similar housing units.
Documentation of rent reasonableness must be kept on file by the
Contractor.

18.5.1.10. The portion of rent paid with grant funds may not exceed HUD-
determined fair market rents.

18.5.1.11. The Contractor shall pay Individual landlords directly: funds may not
be given directly to participants to pay leasing costs.

18.5.1.12. Property damages may only be paid from money paid to the landlord
for security deposits.

18.5.1.13. The Contractor cannot lease a building that it already owns to itself.

18.5.1.14. Housing must be in compliance with all State and local housing
codes, licensing requirements, the Lead-Based Paint Poisoning
Prevention Act,'and any other requirements of the jurisdiction in
which'the housing is located regarding the condition of the structure
and operation of the housing or services.

18.5.1.15. The Contractor may charge program participants rent and utilities
(heat, hot water); however, the.amount charged may not exceed the
maximum amounts specified in HUD regulations (24 CFR 578.77).
Other services such as cable, air conditioning, telephone, Internet
access, cleaning, parking, pool charges, etc. are at the participant's
option.

18.5.1.16. The Contractor shall have any staff charged in full or part to this
Contract, or counted as match, complete weekly or bi-weekly
timesheets.

Tri-County Communily Action Program. Inc. ExhibiJ C Contracior initials.
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19. Contractor Financial Management System

19.1. Fiscal Control: The Contractor shall establish fiscal control and fund accounting
procedures which assure proper disbursement of, and accounting for, grant
funds and any required nonfederal expenditures. This responsibility applies to
funds disbursed in direct operations of the Contractor.

19.2. The Contractor shall maintain a financial management system that complies
with 2 CFR part 200 or such equivalent system as the State may require.

Tri-County Comniunily Action Program. Inc. Exhibli.C Contractor Initials _
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41
U.S.C. 701 et seq.), and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections
1,11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification;

ALTERNATIVE I - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

.This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V. Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.}. The January 31,
1989 regulations were amended and published as Part II of the May 25, 1990 Federal Register (pages
21681-21691), and require certification by grantees (and by inference; sub-grantees and sub
contractors), prior Id award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the
regulation provides that a grantee (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that is a State
may elect to make one certification to the Department in each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for
each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate set out below is a
material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant. False
certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payrhents, suspension or
termination of grants, or government wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form should
send it to:

Commissioner

NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street,

Concord. NH 03301-6505

1. The grantee certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:
1.1. Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,

dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee's
workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such
prohibition;

1.2. Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about
1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse in the v/orkplace;
1.2.2. The grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;
1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance prograrns; and
1.2.4. The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations

occurring in the workplace;
1.3. Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be

given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a):
1.4. Notifying the employee in the statement required tDy paragraph (a) that, as a condition of

employment under the grant, the employee will
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the statement; and
1.4.2. Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug

statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
conviction;

1.5. Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or othenwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, to every grant
officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the Federal agency

Exhibit D - Certirtcalion regarding Drug Free Vendor Initials
Workplace Requirements
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has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shali include the
identification number{s) of each affected grant;

1.6. Taking one of the following actions, within 30 caiendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2, with respect to any employee who Is so convicted
1.6.1. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including

termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended; or

1.6.2. Requiring such employee to participate satisfactoriiy in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health,
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;

1.7. Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
implementation of paragraphs 1.1, 1.2, 1.3, 1.4, 1.5, and 1.6.

2, The grantee may insert in the space provided below the site(s) for the performance of work done In
connection with the specific grant.

Place of Performance {street address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each location)

Check □ if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

Vendor Name:Tf\- Ac\\w\ \WC.

Date . ' 1 Name:
Title:

Exhibil D - Certification regarding Drug Free Vendor Initials
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Vendor Identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and
31 U.S.C. 1352, and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11
and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable program covered):
'Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A
"Child Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-D
'Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
'Medicald Program under Title XIX
•Community Services Block Grant under Title VI
'Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in
connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renev/al, amendment, or
modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention
sub-grantee or sub-contractor).

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
Influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub
contractor), the undersigned shall complete and subrriil Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to
Report Lobbying. In accordance with Its Instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-l.)

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award
document for sut>-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants,
loans, arid cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction
was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this
transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31. U.S. Code. Any person who falls to file the. required
certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for
each such failure.

Vendor Name: C.ou'A-Ki

Date^ \ \' Name: tSccwsw*^
Title:cao
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT. SUSPENSION

AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the Genera! Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of-
Executive Office of the President, Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part ,76 regarding Debarmenl,
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's
representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following
Certification:

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant is providing the
certification set out below.

2. The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result in denial
of participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall submit an
explanation of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation will be
considered in connection with the NH Department of Health and Human Services' (DHHS)
determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary
participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation in
this transaction.

3.. The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when DHHS determined to enter into this transaction.. If it is later determined that the prospective
primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies
available to the Federal Government. DHHS may terminate this transactionTor cause or default.

4. The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the DHHS agency to
whom this proposal (contract) is submitted if at any time the,prospective primary participant learns
that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances. . ,

5. The terms "covered transaction," "debarred," "suspended." "ineligible," "lower tier covered
transaction." "participant." "person." "primary covered transaction." "principal," "proposal," and
"voluntarily excluded." as'used in this clause, have the.meanings set out in the Definitions and
Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549; 45 CFR Part 76. See the
attached definitions.

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should the
"  proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered

transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the
clause titled "Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion •
Lower Tier Covered Transactions." provided by DHHS. without modification, in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

8. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a
lower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded
from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may ,
decide the method and frequency by which It determines the eligibility of its principals. Each
participant may. but is not required to. check the Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties).

9. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records
in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and

cu/DHHS/noTia
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information of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent
person in the ordinary course of busings dealings.

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in a
covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is
suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in
addition to other remedies available to the Federal government, DHHS may terminate this transaction
for cause or default.

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS

11. The prospective primary participant certifies to Ihe best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its
principals:
11.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;
11.2.. have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had

a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal. State or local)
transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or Stale antitrust
statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of
records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property:

11.3. are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(Federal, Stale or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (i)(b)
of this certification: and

11.4. have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public
transactions (Federal, Slate or local) terminated for cause or default.

12; Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS
13. By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as

defined in 45.CFR Part 76, certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and its. principals:
13.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed'for debarment. declared ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency.
13.2. where the prospective lower tier participant Is unable to certify to any of the above, such

prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

14. The prospective lower tier.participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it will
include this-clause entitled ."Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension. Ineligibility, and
Voluntary Exclusion • Lower Tier Covered Transactions," without modification in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions. ,

Vendor Name;T<i-Ci>i^^ Action

Date ' \ Name:
Title;
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CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO
FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATION. EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND

WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Vendor ideniified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

Vendor will comply, and will require any subgrantees or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable
federal nondiscrimination requirements, which may include:

- the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. Section 3789d) which prohibits
recipients of federal funding urtder this statute from discriminating, either in employment practices or in
the delivery of services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan;

- the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by
reference, the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under this
statute are prohibited from discriminating, either in employment practices or in the delivery of services or
benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act includes Equal
Employment Opportunity Plan requirements;

- the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d, which prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national origin in any program or activity);

- the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794), which prohibits recipients of Federal financial,
assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability, in regard to employment and the delivery of
services or benefits, in any program or activity;

- the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131 -34), which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities in employment. Stale and local
government services, public accommodations, commercial facilities, and transportation;

- the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681, 1683, 1685-86), which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of sex in federally assisted education programs;

- the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07), which prohibits discrimination on the
basis of age-in programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. It does not include
employment discrimination;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - OJJDP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pt. 42
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Nondiscrimination; Equal Employment Opportunity; Policies
and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for faith-based and community
organizations); Executive Order No. 13559, which provide fundamental principles and policy-making
criteria for partnerships with faith-based and neighborhood organizations;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations); and Whistleblower protections 41. U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense Authorization
Act (NDAA)for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L 112-239, enacted January 2. 2013) the Pilot Program for
Enhancement of Contract Employee Whistleblower Protections, which protects employees against
reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities in connection with federal grants and contracts.

The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the
agency awards the grant. False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or government wide suspension or
debarment.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit G

In the event a Federal or State court or Federal or State administrative agency makes a finding of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights, to
the applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services, and
to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

/

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

I . By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Vendor agrees to comply with the provisions
indicated above.

Vendor Name:"T<\-

■  iA4^
Date \ \ Name: 'KC>V>^Ckr5

Title:
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit H

CERTIFiCATiON REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227, Part C - Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994
(Act), requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility owned or leased or
contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education,
or library services to children under the age of 18, If the services are funded by Federal programs either
directly or through State or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
law does not apply to children's services provided In private residences, facilities funded solely by
Medicare or Medicald funds, and portions of facilities used for Inpatient drug or alcohol treatment. Failure
to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up to
$1000 per day and/or the imposition of an administrative compliance order on the responsible entity.

The Vendor Identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor's
representative as Identified In Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this contract, the Vendor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply with
all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part C, known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994.

Vendor Name:

Date Name:

Title:

Exhibit H - Cohificatiort Regarding Vendor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit I

HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABILITY AND ACCOUNTABILITY ACT
BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act. Public Law 104-191 and
with the Standards for Privacy and Security, of Individually Identifiable Health Inforrhation. 45
CFR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein. "Business
Associate" shall mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that
receive, use or have access to protected health information under this Agreement and "Covered
Entity" shall mean the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services..

(1) Definitions.

a- "Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" in section 164.402 of Title 45.
Code of Federal Regulations.

b. "Business Associate" has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45, Code
of Federal Regulations.

c. "Covered Entitv" has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

d. "Designated Record Set"shall have the same meaning as the term "designated record set"
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

e. "Data Acareoation" shall have the same meaning as the term "data aggregation" in 45 CFR
Section 164,501.

f. "Health Care Operations" shall have the same meaning as the term "health care operations"
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

g. "HITECH Act" means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health
Act. TitleXIII, Subtitle D, Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
2009.

h. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of individually Identifiable Health
Information. 45 CFR Parts 160, 162 and 164 and amendments thereto.

i. "Individual" shall have the same meaning as the term "individual" in 45 CFR Section 160.103
and shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45
CFR Section 164.501(g).

j. "Privacv Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164. promulgated under HIPAA by the United States
Department of Health and Human Services.

k. "Protected Health Information" shall have the same meaning as the term "protected health
information" in 45 CFR Section 160.103, limited to the information created or received by
Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity. J

3/2014 Exhibit I Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit I

•V.

I. "Required bv Law" shall have the same meaning as the term "required by law" in 45 CFR
Section 164.103.

m. "Secretarv" shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or
his/her designee.

n. "Securitv Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic-Protected
Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C. and amendments thereto.,

o. "Unsecured Protected Health Information" means protected health information that is not

secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable,
unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed or endorsed by
a standards developing organization that is accredited by the American National Standards
Institute.

p. Other Definitions - All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning
established under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160, 162 and 164, as amended from time to time, and the
HITECH

Act.

(2) Business Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information.

a. Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health
Information (PHi) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under
Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further, Business Associate, including but not limited to all
its directors, officers, employees and agents, shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit
PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

b. Business Associate may use or disclose PHI:
I. For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;
II. As required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
III. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered
'  Entity.

c. To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a
third party,. Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i)
reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which It was
disclosed to the third party; and (ii) an agreement from such third party to notify Business
Associate, in accordance with the HIPAA Privacy, Security, and Breach Notification
Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, to the extent it has obtained
knowledge of such breach.

d. , The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a
request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, vyithout first notifying
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure and
to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Business

3<t
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit I

Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all
remedies.

e. If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall be bound by such additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHI In violation of
such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

(3) Obligations and Activities of Business Associate.

a. The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity's Privacy Officer Immediately
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected
health information not provided for by the Agreement including breaches of unsecured
protected health information and/or any security incident that may have an impact on the

.  protected health information of the Covered Entity.

b. The Business Associate shall immediately perform a risk assessment when it becomes
aware of any of the above situations. The risk assessment shall include, but not be
limited to:

0  The nature and extent of the protected health information involved, including the
types of identifiers and the likelihood of re-identification;

0  The unauthorized person used the protected health information or to whom the
disclosure was made;

o Whether the protected health information was actually acquired or viewed
0 The extent to which the risk to the protected health information has been

mitigated.

The Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment within 48 hours of the
breach and immediately report the findings of the risk assessment in writing to the
Covered Entity.

c. The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy,-Security, and
Breach Notification Rule..

d. Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered Entity's compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and
Security Rule.

e. Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have
access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same
restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, including
the duty to. return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (1). The Covered Entity
shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of the Contractor's business associate
agreements with Contractor's intended business associates, who will be receiving PHJ
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit i

pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and indemnification from such
business associates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph #13 of the standard
contract provisions (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected health information.

f. Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at Its offices all
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine
Business Associate's compliance with the terms of the Agreement.

g. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the
requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

h. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record.
Set, the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity, for
amendment and incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity.to fulfill its
obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

i. Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to
such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.528.

j. Within ten .(IO) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available
to Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.528.

k. In the event any individual requests access to, amendment of, or accounting of PHI
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2)
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the
responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the
individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall instead respond to the individual's request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

I. Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreernent. for any reason, the
Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI
received from, or created or received by the Business Associate in connection with the
Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or
destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to in
the Agreement, Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections of the
Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to those
purposes that make the return or destruction infeasible, for so long as Business
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Exhibit!

Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, requires that the
Business Associate destroy any or all PHI, the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

(4) Obligations of Covered Entity

a. ' Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limitation(s) in its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.520, to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate's
use or disclosure of PHI. ,

b. Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation
of permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164.506or45CFRSection 164.508.

c. Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522,
to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of
PHI.

(5) Termination for Cause

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions (P-37) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately terminate.the. Agreement upon Covered
Entity's knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit I. The Covered Entity may either immediately
terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the
alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If^Covered Entity
determines that neither termination nor cure is feasible, Covered Entity shall report the
violation to the Secretary.

(6) Miscellaneous

a. Definitions and Regulatory References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein,
shall have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from time to time. A reference in the Agreement, as arnended to include this Exhibit I. to
a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as
amended.

b. Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is
necessary to amend the Agreement, from time to time as is necessary for Covered
Entityto comply with the chariges in the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and
Security Rule, and applicable'federal and state law.

c. Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights
with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

d. Interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be resolved
to permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule. /
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Nevy Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit I

Segregation. If any term or condition of this Exhibit I or the application thereof to any
person(s) or circumstance Is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or
conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the-
terms and conditions of this Exhibit I.are declared severable.

Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit I regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, return or
destruction of PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section (3) I, the
defense and indemnification provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the
standard terms, and conditions (P-37), shall survive the termination of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit I.

Department of Health and Human Services

The State Name of

A

Signature of Authorized Representative

Christine Santaniello

Name of Authorized Representative '

■ Director. DEHS
Title of Authorized Representative

6/4/20
Date

vi (jC)WYV1Uy1\^
thfe Contractor

Sign'&t >orized Representative

Name of Authorized Representative

CVl'.d; Fxeu^\\/e O^cfiT
Title of Authorized Representative

Date
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit J

CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY AND TRANSPARENCY
ACT (FFATAi COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act {FFATA) requires prime awardees of individual
Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,cid0 and awarded on or after October 1, 2010, to report on
data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more. If the
initial award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award equal to or over
$25,000, the av/ard is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award.
In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), the
Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) must report the following information for any.
subaward or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:
1. Name of entity
2. Amount of award

3. Funding agency
4. NAICS code for contracts ICFDA program number for grants
5. Program source
6. Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
7. Location of the entity
8. Principle place of performance
9. Unique identifier of the entity (DUNS #)
10: Total compensation and names of the top five executives if:

10.1. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those
revenues are greater than $25M annually and

10.2. CompensaUon Information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the riionth. plus 30 days, in which
the award or award amendment is made.
The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act. Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-252,
and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and further agrees
to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions
execute the following Certification;
The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the NH
Department of Health and Human Services and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal
Financial Accountability and Transparency Act.

Contractor Name:■R^-(JDor^Vv^C(S'WvvtMv^•.^ Ific.

Dat
Title:
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit J

FORMA

As the Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions^) certify that the responses to the
below listed questions are true and accurate.

1. The DUNS number for your entity is: _Q3,5a25lO'T^
2. In your business or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization

receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts,^
loans, grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual
gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants, and/or
cooperative agreements?

NO YES

If the answer to #2 above is NO, stop here

If the answer to #2 above is YES, please answer the following:

3. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your
business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities.
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a), 780(d)) or section 6104'of the Internal Revenue Code of.
1986?

NO YES

If the answer to #3 above is YES. stop here

If the answer to #3 above is NO, please answer the following:

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization are as follows:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

CU'DHHS/ll07t3
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS information Security Requirements

A. Definitions

The fo!lowing terms may be reflected and have the described meaning in this document:

1. "Breach" means the loss of control, compromise, unauthorized disclosure,
unauthorized acquisition, unauthorized access, or any similar term referring to
situations where persons other than authorized users and for an other than
authorized purpose have access or potential access to personally identifiable
information, whether physical or electronic. With regard to Protected Health .
Information," Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" In section
164.402 of Title 45, Code of Federal Regulations.

2. "Computer Security Incident" shall have the same nieaning "Computer Security
Incident" in section two (2) of NIST Publication 800-61, Computer Security Incident
Handling Guide, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U.S. Department
of Commerce. -

3. "Confidential Information" or "Confidential Data" means all confidential information

disclosed by one party to the other such as all medical, health, financial, public
assistance benefits and personal information including without limitation, Substance
Abuse Treatment Records, Case Records. Protected Health Information and
Personally Identifiable Information.

Confidential Information also includes any and all information owned or managed by
the State of NH - created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Health and
Human Services (DHHS) or accessed in the course of performing contracted
services - of which collection, disclosure, protection, and disposition is governed by
state or federal law or regulation. This information includes, but is not limited to
Protected Health Information (PHI), Perspnal Information (PI), Personal Financial
Information (PFI), Federal Tax Information (FTI), Social Security Numbers (SSN),
Payment Card Industry (PCI), and or other sensitive and confidential information.

4. "End User" means any person or entity (e.g., contractor, contractor's employee,
business associate, subcontractor, other downstream user, etc.) that receives
DHHS data or derivative data in accordance with the terms of this Contract.

5. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and the
regulations promulgated thereunder.

6. "Incident" means an act that potentially violates an explicit or implied security policy,
which includes atterhpts (either failed or successful) to gain unauthorized access to a.
system or its data, unwanted disruption or denial of service, the unauthorized use "of

-  a system for the processing or storage of data; and changes to system hardware,
firmware, or software characteristics without the owner's knowledge, instruction, or
consent. Incidents Include the loss of data through theft or device misplacement, loss
or misplacement of hardcopy documents, and misrouting of physical or electronic
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Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

mail, all of which may have the potential to put the data at risk of unauthorized
access, use, disclosure, modification or destruction.

7. "Open Wireless Network" means any network or segment of a network that Is
not designated by the State of New Hampshire's Department of Information
Technology or delegate as a protected network (designed, tested, and
approved, by means of the State, to transmit) will be considered an open
network and not adequately secure for the transmission of unencrypted PI, PFI,
PHI or confidential DHHS data.

8. "Personal Information" (or "PI") means information which can be used to distinguish
or trace, an individual's identity, such as their name, social security number; personal
information as defined in New Hampshire RSA 359-C:19, biometric records, etc.,
alone, or when combined with other personal or identifying information which is linked
or linkable to a specific individual, such as dale and place of birth, mother's maiden
name, etc.

9. "Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at'45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United
States Department of Health and Human Services.

10. "Protected Health Information" (or "PHI") has the same meaning as provided in the
definition of "Protected Health Information" In the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C.F.R. §
160.103.

11. "Security Rule'' shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic
Protected Health Information at 45 C.F.R. Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments
thereto.

12. "Unsecured Protected Health Information" means Protected Health Information that is

not secured by a technology standard that renders Protected Health Information
unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is
developed or endorsed by a standards developing organization that is accredited by
the American National Standards Institute.

I. RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR

A. Business Use and Disclosure of Confidential Information.

1. The Contractor must not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Confidential Information

except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further. Contractor,
including but not limited to all its directors, officers, employees and agents, must not
use. disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation
of the Privacy and Security Rule.

2. The Contractor must not disclose any Confidential Information in response to a

vs. Last update 10/09/18 Exhibit K . Contractor Initials.
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DHHS Information Security Requirements

request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, in response to a
subpoena, etc., without first notifying DHHS so that DHHS has an opportunity to
consent or object to the disclosure.

3. if DHHS notifies the Contractor that DHHS has agreed to be bound by additional
restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Contractor must be bound by such
additional restrictions and. must not disclose PHI in violation of such additional

restrictions and must abide by any additional security safeguards.

4. The Contractor agrees that DHHS Data or derivative there from disclosed to an End
User must only be used pursuant to the terms of this Contract.

5. The Contractor agrees DHHS Data obtained under this Contract may not be used for
any other purposes that are not indicated in this Contract.

6. The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the authorized representatives
of DHHS for the purpose of inspecting to confirm compliance with the terms of this
Contract.

II. METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

1. Application Encryption. If End User is transmitting DHHS data containing
Confidential Data between applications, the Contractor attests the applications have
been evaluated by an expert knowledgeable in -cyber security and that said
application's encryption capabilities ensure secure transmission via the internet.

2. Computer Disks and Portable Storage Devices. End User, may not use computer disks
or portable storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as a method of transmitting DHHS
data.

3. Encrypted Email. End User may only employ email to transmit Confidential Data if
email is encrypted and being sent to and being received by email addresses of
persons authorized to receive such information.

4. Encrypted Web Site. If End User is employing the Web to transmit Confidential
Data, the secure socket layers (SSL) must be used and the web site must be
secure. SSL encrypts data transmitted via a Web site.

5. File Hosting Services, also known as File Sharing Sites. End User may not use file
hosting services, such as Dropbox or Google Cloud Storage, to transmit
Confidential Data.

6. Ground Mail Service. End User may only transmit Confidential Data via certified ground
mail within the continental U.S. and when sent to a named individual.

7. Laptops and PDA. If End User is employing portable devices to transmit
Confidential Data said devices must be encrypted and password-protected.

8. Open Wireless Networks. End User may not transmit Confidential Data via an open

vs. Last update 10/09/18 Exhibit K, Contractor Iniiiais.
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. wireless network. End User must employ a virtual private network (VPN) when
remotely transmitting via an open wireless network.

9. Remote User Communication. If End User is employing remote communication to
access or transmit Confidential Data, a virtual private network (VPN) must be
installed on the End User's mobile device(s) or laptop from which information will be
transmitted or accessed.

10. SSH File Transfer Protocol (SFTP), also known as: Secure File Transfer Protocol. If
End User is employing an SFTP to transmit Confidential Data. End User will
structure the Folder and access privileges to prevent inappropriate disclosure of
information. SFTP folders and sub-folders used for transmitting Confidential Data will
be coded for 24-hour auto-deletion cycle (i.e. Confidential Data will be deleted every 24
hours).

11. Wireless Devices. If End User is transmitting Confidential Data via wireless devices, all
data must be encrypted to prevent inappropriate disclosure of information.

RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The Contractor will only retain the data and any derivative of the data for Ihe'duration of this
Contract. After such time, the Contractor will.have 30 days to destroy the data and any
derivative in whatever form It may exist, unless, otherwise required by law or permitted
under this Contract. To this end, the parties must:

A. Retention

1. The Coritractor agrees it will not store, transfer or process data collected in
connection with the services rendered under this Contract outside of the United
States. This physical location requirement shall also apply in the implementation of
cloud computing, cloud service or cloud storage capabilities, and includes backup
data and Disaster Recovery locations.

2. The Contractor agrees to ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in
place to detect potential security events that can impact istate of NH systems
and/or Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

3. The Contractor agrees to provide security awareness and education for its End
Users In support of protecting Department confidential information.

4. The Contractor agrees to retain all electronic and hard copies of Confidential Data
in a secure location and identified in section IV. A.2

5. The Contractor agrees Confidential Data stored in a Cloud must be In a
FedRAMP/HITECH compliant solution and comply with all applicable statutes and
regulations regarding the privacy and security. All servers and devices must have
currently-supported and hardened operating systems, the latest anti-viral, anti-
hacker, anti-spam, anti-spyware, and anti-malware utilities. The environment, as a
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whole, must have aggressive intrusion-detection and firewall protection.

6. The Contractor agrees to and ensures its complete cooperation with the State's
Chief Information Officer in the detection of any security vulnerability of the hosting
infrastructure.

B. Disposition

1. If the'Contractor will maintain any Confidential Information on its systems (or Its
sub-contractor systems), the Contractor will maintain a docurhented process for
securely disposing of such data upon request or contract termination; and will
obtain written certification for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the
Contractor or any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster
recovery operations. When no longer in use, electronic media containlhg State of
New Hampshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program
in accordance with industry-accepted standards for secure deletion and media
sanitization. or otherwise physically destroying the media (for example,
degaussing) as described in NISI Special Publication 800-88, Rev 1, Guidelines
for Media Sanitization." National Institute of Standards and Technology, U. S.
Department of Commerce. The Contractor will document and certify in writing at
time of the data destruction, and will provide written certification to the Department
upon request. The written certification will include all details necessary to
demonstrate data has been properly destroyed and validated. Where applicable.
regulaXory and professional standards for retention requirements will be jointly

. evaluated by the Stale and Contractor prior to destruction.

2. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to destroy all hard copies of Confidential Data using a
secure method such as shredding.

3. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days , of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to completely destroy all electronic Confidential Data
by means of data erasure, also known as secure data wiping.

IV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. Contractor agrees to safeguard the DHHS Data received under this Contract, and any
derivative data or files, as follows:

1. The Contractor will maintain proper security controls to protect Department
confidential information collected, processed, managed, and/or stored in the delivery
of contracted services.

2. The Contractor will maintain policies and procedures to protect Department
confidential information throughout the information lifecycle, where applicable, (from
creation, transformation, use, storage and secure destruction) regardless of the
media used to store the data (i.e., tape, disk, paper, etc.).

V5. Last update 10/09/18 Extiibit K , Contractor Initials
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3. The Contractor will maintain appropriate authentication and access controls to
contractor systems that collect, transmit, or store Department confidential information
where applicable.

4. The Contractor will ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in place to
detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems and/or
Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

5. The Contractor will provide regular security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

6. If the Contractor will be sub-contracting any core functions of the engagement
supporting the services for State of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a
program of an internal process or processes that defines specific security
expectations, and monitoring compliance to security requirements that at a minimum
match those for the Contractor, including breach notification requirements.

7. -The Contractor will work with the Department to sign and comply with all applicable
State of New Hampshire and Department system access and authorization policies
and procedures, systems access forms, and computer use agreements as part of
obtaining and maintaining access to any Department system(s). Agreements will be
completed and signed by the Contractor and any applicable sub-contractors prior to
systerh access being authorized. ^ ,

8. If the Department determines the Contractor is a Business Associate pursuant to 45
CFR 160.103, the Contractor will execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
(BAA) with the Department and is responsible for maintaining compliance vvith the
agreement. ̂

9. The Contractor will work with the Department at its request to complete a System
Management Survey. The purpose of the survey is to enable the Department and
Contractor to monitor for any changes in risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that ma^
occur over the life of the Contractor engagement. The survey will be completed
annually, or an alternate time frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by
the Contractor, or the Department may request the. survey be completed when the
scope Of the engagement between the Department and the Contractor changes.

10. The Contractor will not store, knowingly.or unknowingly, any State of New Hampshire
or Department data offshore or outside the boundaries of the United States unless
prior express written consent is obtained from the Information Security Office
leadership rriember within the Department.

11. Data Security Breach Liability. In the event of any security breach Contractor shall
make efforts to investigate the causes of the breach, promptly take measures to
prevent future breach and minimize any damage or loss resulting from the breach.
The Stale shall recover frorii the Contractor all costs of response and recovery from

V5. Last update 10/09/18 Exhibit K, Contractor Initials
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the breach, including but not limited to: credit monitoring services, mailing costs and
costs associated with website and telephone call center services necessary due to
the breach.

12. Contractor must, comply with all applicable statutes and regulations regarding the
privacy and security of Confidential Information, and must in all other respects
maintain the privacy and security of PI and PHI at a level and scope'that is not less
than the level and scope of requirements applicable to federal agencies, including,
but not lirrlited to, provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 U.S.C. § 552a), DHHS
Privacy Act Regulations {45 C.F.R. §5b), HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45
C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164) that govern protections for Individually identifiable health
information and as applicable under State law.

13. Contractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate administrative, technical, and
physical safeguards to protect the confidentiality of the Confidential Data and to
prevent unauthorized use or access to it. The safeguards must provide a level and
scope of security that is not less than the level and scope of security requirements
established by the State of New Hampshire, Department of Information Technology.
Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement at hltps://www.nh.gov/doit/vendor/index.htm
for the Department of Information Technology policies, guidelines, standards, and
procurement information relating to vendors.

14. Contractor agrees to maintain a documented breach notification and incident
response process. The Contractor will notify the State's Privacy Officer and the
State's Security Officer of any security breach immediately, at the email addresses
provided in Section VI. This includes a confidential information breach, computer
security incident, or suspected breach which affects or includes any State of New
Hampshire systems that cohnect to the State of New Hampshire network.

15. Contractor must restrict access to the Confidential Data obtained under this

Contract to only those authorized End Users who need such DHHS Data to
perform their official duties in connection with purposes identified in this Contract.

16. The Contractor must ensure that all End Users:

a. comply with such safeguards as referenced in Section IV A. above,
implemented to protect Confidential Information that is furnished by DHHS
under this Contract from loss, theft or inadvertent disclosure.

b. safeguard this information at all times.

c. ensure that laptops and other electronic-devices/media containing PHI. PI. or
PFl are encrypted and password-protected.

d. send emails containing Confidential Information only if encrypted and being
sent to and being received by email addresses of persons authorized to
receive such information. •
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e. limit disclosure of the Confidential Information to the extent permitted by law.

f. Confidential Information received under this Contract and individually
Identifiable data derived from DHHS Data, must be stored in an area that is
physically and technologically secure from access by unauthorized persons
during duty hours as well as non-duty hours (e.g., door locks, card keys,
biometric identifiers, etc.).

g. only authorized End Users may transmit the Confidential Data, including any
.  derivative files containing personally identifiable information, and in all cases,
such- data must be encrypted at all times when in transit, at rest, or when
stored on portable media as required in section IV above.

h. in all other instances Confidential Data must be maintained, used and
disclosed using'appropriate safeguards, as determined by a risk-based
assessment of the circumstances involved.

I. understand that their user credentials (user name and password) must,not be
shared with anyone. End Users will keep their credential information secure.
This applies to credentials used to access the site directly or indirectly through
a third party application.

Contractor is responsible for oversight and compliance of their End Users. DHHS
reserves the right to conduct " bnsite inspections to monitor compliance with this
Contract, including the privacy and security requirements provided in herein, HIPAA,
and other applicable laws and Federal regulations until such time the Confidential Data
is disposed of in accordance with this Contract.

V. LOSS REPORTING

The Contractor must notify the State's Privacy Officer and Security Officer of any
Security Incidents and Breaches immediately, at the email addresses provided in
Section VI.

The Contractor must further handle and report Incidents and Breaches involving PHI in
accordance with the agency's documented Incident Handling and Breach Notification
procedures and in accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 -.306. In addition to, and
notwithstanding. Contractor's compliance with ail applicable obligations and procedures,

. Contractor's procedures must also address how the Contractor will:

1. Identify Incidents;

2. Determine If personally identifiable information is involved in Incidents;

3. Report suspected or confirmed Incidents as required in this Exhibit or P-37:

4. Identify and convene a core response group to determine the risk level of Incidents
and determine risk-based responses to Incidents; and
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5. Determine whether Breach notification is required, and. if so, identify appropriate
Breach notification methods, liming, source, and contents from among different
options, and bear costs associated with the Breach notice as well as any mitigation
measures. . ^ »

Incidents and/or Breaches that implicate PI must be addressed and reported as
applicable, In accordance with NH RSA 359-C;20.

VI. PERSONS TO CONTACT

A. DHHS Privacy Officer:

DHHSPrivacyOfficer@dhhs.nh.gov
B. DHHS Security Officer:

DHHSInformationSecuntyOffice@dhhs.nh.gov
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

1, William M. Gardner, Sccrciary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that TRI-GOUNTY COMMUNITY

ACTION'PROGRAM, INC. (TRI-COUNTY CAP) is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business.in

New Hampshire on May 18, 1965. 1 further cenify that all fees and documents required by the Secretarj' of State's office have

been received and is in good standing as far as this office is concerned.

Business ID; 63020

Certificate Number: 0004876884

u.

A

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this ) si day of April A.D. 2020.

William.M. Gardner

Secretary of State



TRI-COUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM, INC.

17FYi9 Board Resolution: Resolution of the Corporation

Authority to Sign

The Board of Directors of Tri County Community Action Program, Inc. (the "Corporation")
^kes the following action.

Resolved,

That the Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. Chief Executive Officer (CEO) Jeanne L.

Robillard, Chief Financial Officer (CFO) Randall S. Piiotie, and Chief Operating Officer
(COO) Regan L. Pride are hereby authorized on behalf of this Corporation to enter into contracts
with the Federal Government, State of New Hampshire, and any other parties as deemed
necessary and to execute any and all documents, agreements and other instruments and
amendments, revisions or modifications thereto, as may be deem necessary, desirable or

appropriate for the corporation; this'authorization being enforced and effective until June 30",
2020.

Attest, the resolution adopted therein was duly authorized by the Board of Directors on June 25'^
2019

Name: Sandy Alonpo
Title: Board Cha

Name: Cathy tjoiiway
Title: Board Treasurer



CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY
/

I, Anne Barber ; , hereby certify that:
(Name of the elected Officer of the Corporation/LLC; cannot be contract signatory)

1. I am a duly elected Board-fitwW Vice Chair/ Elected Officer of Tri-County Community Action Program, INC._.
(Corporation/LLC Name)

2. The following is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called and
held on June 25th , 2019 , at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present and voting.

(Date)

VOTED: That Jeanne Roblllard, Chief Executive Officer, Randall Pilotte Chief Financial Officer (may fist more than
one person)

(Name and Title of Contract Signatory)

is duly authorized on behalf of Tri-County Community Action Program, INC._ to enter irito contracts or
agreements with the State

(Name of Corporation/LLC)

of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments and further is authorized to execute any and all
documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, which
may in his/her judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3. I hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and effect as of the
date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached. This authority remains valid for
thirty (30) days from the date of this. Certificate of Authority. I further certify that it is understood that the State of
New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s) listed above currently occupy the
position(s) indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any
lirhits on the authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation in contracts vi(iil>the State of New Hampshire,
all such limitations are expressly stated herein.

Dated:_( 2-0 - -
Signature of Elected Officer
Name: Anne Barber

Title: Interim" Vice Chair

Rev. 03/24/20



ACORcf CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE (MM/DDTTYVY)

02/25/2020

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER .THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S). AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER. AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(les) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder In lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER

FIAI/Cross Insurance

1100 Elm Streel

Manchester NH 03101

Karen Shaughnessy

P^NnF.n- (603)669-3218 (603)645-4331
AonRFSS' kshaughnessytgcrossagency.com

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC «

INSURER A: Philadelphia Ins Co
INSURED

TrI-County Communily Action. Program. Inc

30 Exchange Street

Beriin NH 03570

INSURER B: Granite Stale Health Care and Human Services Self-

INSURERC:

INSURER 0;

INSURER E;

INSURER F :

INSR
LTR

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED 8EL0W HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TQ ALL THE TERMS.
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

xrocTSOBX POLICY EFF POLICY EXP
IMM/DD/YYYYlTYPE Of INSURANCE

X COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

OCCURCLAIMS-MADE

GENt AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:

POLICY jEcf EZl
OTHER;

X LOC

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

ANY AUTOX

X

OWNED

AUTOS ONLY
HIRED

AUTOS ONLY

UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS LIAB

DED

SCHEDULED

AUTOS
NONOWNEO
AUTOS ONLY

X OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

X RETENTION $
WORKERS COMPENSATION

AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY

ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?
(Mandatory In NH)
lives, describe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS beKw

Professional Liability

INSIl WVD POLICY NUMBER

PHPK2003516

PHPK2003523

PHUB683002

HCHS20200000241 (3a.) NH

PHPK2003516

IMM/DOiYYYYl

07/01/2019

07/01/2019

07/01/2019

02/01/2020

07/01/2019

,

07/01/2020

07/01/2020

07/01/2020

02/01/2021

07/01/2020

EACH OCCURRENCE
DAMAGE TO HfcNItO
PREMISES lEa occurrence!

MEO EXP (Any one person)

PERSONAL a ADV INJURY

GENERAL AGGREGATE

PRODUCTS • COMPlOP AGG

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
lEa ecddenil

BODILY INJURY (Per person]

BODILY INJURY (Per accident)'

PROPERTY DAMAGE
IPer eecldenU

EACH OCCURRENCE

AGGREGATE

X
PER
STATUTF

OTH
ER

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT

E,L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE

E.L. DISEASE • POLICY LIMIT

Each Occurrence

Aggregate

1,000.000

100,000

5.000

1.000.000

3,000.000

3,000.000

1.000.000

2.000.000

2,000.000

1.000.000

1.000.000

1,000.000

51,000,000

53.000.000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS (LOCATIONS/VEHICLES (ACORO 101. Additional Remarks Schedule, may beatuched II more space Is required)

NH DHHS

129 Pleasant Street

Concord NH 03301

1  •

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORO 25 (2016/03) The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORO



JRB-COUNTY
COMMUNITY ACTION
Serving Cobs. Carroll & Grafton Counties since 1965

MISSION STATEMENT

TRI-COUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM, Inc. Is a

private, non-profit 501 (C) 3 corporation that is dedicated

to improving the lives and well being of New Hampshire's
people and communities. Formed on May 18,1965, we

provide opportunities and support for people to learn and
grow in self-sufficiency and get involved in helping their

neighbors and improving the conditions in their

communities.

TRI-COUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM, Inc.

... Helping people, changing lives.

CEO:JeanneL. Robillard COO:.Regan Pride CFO: Randalls. Pllotte

30 Exchange Street, Berlin NH 03570 P: 603-752-7001

www.tccap.oro FB@TriCQuntvCQmmunitvActionProQram
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To the Board of Directors of

Tri-County Community Action Program. Inc. and Affiliate CKKTit-iKD I'niii-.ic; AcaniMANTS
Berlin, New Hampshire woi.rKBOiH) • kokih i:ona\;\v
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Report on the Financial Sfafemenfs
We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Tri-County Community
Action Program, Inc. and Affiliate (New Hampshire nonprofit organizations), which comprise the
consolidated statements of financial position as of June 30, 2019 and 2018, the related
consolidated statements of cash flows and functional expenses for the years then ended, the
related consolidated statement of activities for the year'ended June 30, 2019 and the related
notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Sfafemenfs
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated
financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control
relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement. whether due to fraud or error.

\

Auditors'Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on
our audit. VVe conducted our audit In accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards. Issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit Involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditors' judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair
presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit
also Includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.



Opinion
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all
material respects, the consolidated financial position of Tri-County Community Action Program,
Inc. and Affiliate as of June 30, 2019 and 2018, and its consolidated cash flows for the years
then ended, and the changes in its net assets for the year ended June 30. 2019, in accordance
v/ith accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Report on Summarized Comparative Information
We have previously audited Tri-Counly Community Action Program, Inc. and Affiliate's' 2018
consolidated financial statements, and we expressed an unmodified audit opinion on those
consolidated financial statements in our report dated October 19, 2018. In our opinion, the
surhmarized comparative information presented herein as of and for the year ended June 30,
2018, is consistent, in all material respects, with the audited consolidated financial statements
from which It has been derived.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements as a whole. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as
required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, is presented for
purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the consolidated Hnancial
statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and
relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated
financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied In
the audit of the consolidated financial statements and certain additional procedures; including
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to, prepare the consolidated financial statements or to the consolidated financial
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly
stated, in ail material respects, in relation to the consolidated financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
October 21, 2019, on our consideration of Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.'s internal
control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to
describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and
the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of Tri-County
Community Action Program, Inc.'s internal control over financial reporting or on compliance.
That report Is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering Tri-County Community Action Program. Inc.'s internal control over
financial reporting and compliance.

October 21, 2019
North Conway, New Hampshire



TRI.COUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM. INC. AND AFFILIATE

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

JUNE 30. 2019 AND 2018

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash

Accounts receivable

Property held for sale
Pledges receivable
Inventories

Prepaid expenses

Total current assets

PROPERTY

Property and equipment
Less accumulated depreciation

Property, net

OTHER ASSETS

Restricted cash

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Demand note payable
Current portion of long term debt
Current portion of capita! lease obligations
Accounts payable
Accrued compensated absences
Accrued salaries

Accrued expenses
Refundable advances

Other liabilities

Total current liabilities

LONG TERM DEBT

Long term debt, net of current portion
Capital lease obligations, net of current portion

Total (iabitities

NET ASSETS

Without donor restrictions

With donor restrictions

Total net assets

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

2019

1.400,750

583.963
1.274,083

47,000
231,161

85,886

34.037

4,077,446

2018

$  1,329,038
380,902

1,156,657

212.207

87,569

3,656,880 3,192,013

12.086.152 ■  12,812,689
(5,178,535) (5,203,324)

6,907,617 7,609,365

418,936 325,863

S 10,983,433 S 11,127.241

1

S $  516,022
148,449 142,733

4.870 4,445
221,571 237.276

204,079 203,121
210,952 187,508
89,524 131,888
197,157 191,069

598,195 387,168

1.674,797 2.001.230

5,227,835 5,373,937
3,355 8,226

6,905,987 7.383,393

3,399,192 2,926.057

678.254 817,791

3,743,848

S 10,983,433 S 11,127,241

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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TRI^OUNTY COMMUNITY ACTtON PROGRAM. >NC. AND AFFILIATE

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2019
WITH PRIOR YEAR SUMMARIZED COMPARATIVE INFORMATION

Total supporting activities

Total functional expanses

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

NET ASSETS. BEGINNING OF YEAR

NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR

1.042.102

17,877.253

473.135

2,926.057

5  3.399,192

(139.537)

817.791

1.042.102

17.677,253

333.598

3,743.648

Without Donor With Donor 2019 2018

Restrictions Restrictions Total Total

REVENUES AND OTHER SUPPORT

Grant and contracts S  14.074,008 5  401,106 5  14.475.114 S 14.309,086
Program funding 1.167.509 1.167.509 1,259,037
Utility programs 1.287.103 1.287,103 . 1.079,361
tn-klnd contributions 477.167 477;i67 351.187

Contributions 230.986 230.986 395,225
Fundraising 39.303 39.303 59.536
Rental income 625,046 625.046 679.112

interest income 643 643 348
(Loss) gain on disposal of property (32.892) (32.892) 48,487

•  Loss on write down of properly held for sale (255.492) (255.492) .

Olher revenue 196.364 196.364 81.938

Total revenues and other support 17,809.745 401.106 18.210.851 18,263.317

NET ASSETS RELEASED FROM RESTRICTIONS 540.643 (540,643) .

Total revenues, olher support, and
net assels released from restrictions 18.350.388 (139.537) 18.210.851 18.263.317

FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

Program Services:
Agency Fund 950.639 950.639 922.701
Head Start. 2.451.296 2.451.296 2.461,916
Guardianship 767,241 767.241 760,009
Transportation 916,089 916,069 879.729
Volunteer 118.406 116,408 122.941

Workforce Development 354.283 354,263 394.252
Alcohol end Other Drugs .444.581

Cenoli County Dental 747.474 747,474 842.637

Support Center 391.650 ' 391,650 276.172

Homeless 714.066 714,066 .577.783
Energy and Commurtliy Development 7,788.560 7,788.560 7,480,943
Elder 1.462,613 1,462.613 1,142,818
Housing Services 172.852 172.852 176,511

Total program services 16.835,151 16.635.151 16,302,993

Supporting Activities:
General and administrative 1.032.207 1.032.207 1.102,448

Fundraising 9.895 • 9.895 8,023

1.110,471

17.413,464

849.653

2,693.995

676.254 S 4.077.446 S 3,743.848

See Notes (c Consolidatod Financial Statements
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TRI.COUNTY CQMMUNLn^CTIQN PROGRAM. INC. AND AFFILIATE

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

.  FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2010 AND 2016

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW

INFORMATION;

Cash paid during the year for:

Interest

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF NONCASH INVESTING

AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Property donated

2019 2018

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Change in net assets $  333.598 S  849.853
Ad]uslments to reconcile change in net assets to
net cash provided by operating activities;

Depreciation 447.669 463.483
Loss (gain) on disposal of property 32.892 (48.487)
Loss on write down of property held for sale 255.492

(Increase) decrease in assets;

Accounts receivable (117.426) 170.337
Pledges receivable (18.954) (8,403)
Inventories 1.683 (21.928)
Prepaid expenses (8.397) 19.705

Restricted cash ' - (296.134) 235,922
Increase (decrease) in liabilities:

Accounts payable (15.705) (281.171)
Accrued compensated absences 956 (39,424)
Accrued salaries 23.444 (9.374)
Accrued expenses (42,364) 24,261
Refundable advances 6.088 ■ (6.479)
Other liabilities 211.027 (258.143)

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES 813.871 1.092.152

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from disposal of property 14.283 278.972
Purchases of property and equipment (95.588) (141.335)

NET CASH (USED IN) PROVIDED BY INVESTING ACTIVITIES (81.305) 137.637

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Net repayment on demand note payable (516.022) (90.412)
Repayment of long-term debt .  (140.386) (31i:983)
Repayment of capital lease obligations (4.446) (4,056)

NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES (660,854) (406,451)

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 71,712 823,338

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 1.329.038 505,700

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS. END OF YEAR $  1.400.750 S  1.329.038

152.078 182.514

18.830

Soo Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONA

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30 20

Gensral &
Aoencv Fund Head 5 Total Administrative Fiindralslna Tpta!

Direct Expenses

Payroll $  l99.2Jt 5  '-3366 S 5.462.305 S  596.457 5  - S 6.050.762

Payroll taxes and benefits 49.259 3  . 1,413.250 163,274 1.576.524

Assistance to clients 22.359 5.786.314 . 5.786.314

Consumable supplies 3.408 ^578 846.305 11.436 857.741

Space costs and rentals 7.828 523.719 66.568 590.287

Depreciation expense 169.653 309 447,669 3.157 450.826

In-kind expended 477,167 477.167

Consultants and contractors 20.400 222.318 16.029 238.347

Utilities 168,297 ' 181 378.636 5.708 384.344

Travel and meetings 11.024 1/42 297.607 20,789 318.396

Other direct program costs 2.535 ■224 157.696 9.225 9.895 176.815
Fiscal and administrative 15,817 -  731 103.147 94,740 197.887
Quildjng and grounds maintenance 93,983 594 179.346 30 179.376
Interest expense 157,585 152.965 953 153.918
Vehicle expense 2.747 199.965 199.965
Insurance 56.671 916 89.010 30.772 119.788
Maintenance of eouipmcnt and rental 56? •331 83.909 12.647 96.556
Fixed fees 8.265 13.817 422 14.239

Total Di/9Ct Expenses 950.639 2.41352 16.835,151 1.032.207 9.695 17.877.253

Indirect Exponses
indirect costs 96.343 7' 1.032.207 (1.032.207) •

Total Direct & Indirect expenses S  1.046.9Q7 5  2.6!r^„ ^ 17.867.358 S S  9.895 S 17.877,253

See Notes to Consolidated Financi
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TRI-CQUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM IN(;,

CONSOUOATEO STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL El

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30 201{

General &
AaencvFund Head Star

Total Ariminisiraiive Fundralslno Total
Direct Expenses

Payroll s  99.755 s  i.aso.Sj;- 5 5.214.049 S  670.592 5  ■ S 5.884.641
Payroll taxes and benefits 23.319 339.0 . 1.260.319 164,414 1.424.733
Assistance tocliients 74.171

5.536.546 5.536,546
ConsumaD'e supplies 1.723 210.852, 949.850 - 11.219 961.069
Space costs and rentals 21.013 164.4 * 578.542 72.385 650.927
Depreciation expense 324.623 1.639 463,483 . 463,483
tn-!cind expended 12,500 206.0' . 351.188 . 351.188
Consultants arid contractors 15.615 28.9: 315.842 15.662 331.504
Utilities 135.551 32.5^2 326.659 3.589 330.248
Travel and meetings 1.093 50.2.,5 278.787 9.470 299.257
Other direct program costs 44.933 9?S.t 192.849 28.234 •8.023 229.106
Fiscal and administrative 243 28.3I30 94:549 106.359 200.908
Building and grounds maintenance 62.822 62.5(30 198.381 •160 193.561
Interest expense •  127.777 31 . 183,401 1.241 184.642
Vehicle expense 4.282 i

164.961 . 164.961
Insurance 65.554 14.0^2 154.315 5,085 159.400
Maintenance ol eguipmeni and rental 52,1: . 127.333 14.018 141.351
Fixed 'ees (

4.312 4,312

Total Direct Expenses 1,015.07.1 2.481,9-,, 16.395.356 1.102.4.18 8,023 17.505,837

Indirect Expenses

Indirect costs 86,950 248.0? 1,102.443 (1.102.448)

Caplulizod Expenses

Less.C8D>taiiZ4iion o< assets

Total Direct £ Indirect ex-penses

(92,3^3)
(92,373)

S  1.009.65 ̂ S 2.730.0(], 5 17,405.':'S1 5

(92,373)

8.023 S 17.413.JSJ

See Notes to Consolidated Financial
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TRI-COUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM. INC. AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2019 AND 2018

N0TE1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Organization and Principles of Consolidation ^

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Tri-County
Community Action Program, Inc. and its affiliate, Cornerstone Housing North, Inc.
The two organizations are consolidated because Tri-County Community Action
Program. Inc. controls 100% of the voting power of Cornerstone Housing North, Inc.
All significant intercompany items and transactions have been eliminated from the
basic financial statements. Tri-County Community Action Program-, Inc. (the
Organization) is a New Hampshire rion-profit corporation that operates a wide
variety of community service programs which are funded primarily through grants or
contracts from various federal, state, and local agencies. Cornerstone Housing
North, Inc. (a New Hampshire nonprofit corporation) was incorporated under the
laws of the State of New Hampshire for the acquisition, construction and operation
of community-based housing for the elderly.

Nature of activities

The Organization's programs consist of the following:

Agency

Tri-County CAP Administration provides central program management
support and oversight to the Organization's many individual programs.
This includes planning and budget development, bookkeeping and
accounting, payroll and HR services, legal and audit services, IT support,
management support, financial support and central policy development.

Tri-County CAP Administration is the liaison between Tri-County
Corrimunity Action Program, Inc., Board of Directors and its programs,
ensuring that programs comply with agreements made by the Board to
funding sources and vendors.

Other responsibilities include the management and allocation of funding
received through a Community Services Block Grant, as well as
management of the Organization's real estate property.

Head Start

Head Start provides comprehensive services to low-income children and
their families. Head Start supports children's growth and development in a
positive learning environment through a variety of activities as well as
providing services, which include in addition to early learning, health and
family well-being. All children receive health and development screenings,
nutritious meals, oral health and mental health support. Parents and
families are supported in achieving their own goals, such as housing
stability, continued education, and financial stability.



Programs support and strengthen parent-child relationships as their child's
primary educator. Head Start stat^ work as partners with parents to identify
and provide individualized activities that support their child's growth and
development.

Tri County Community Action Head-Start serves 217 children in Carroll,
Coos & Grafton counties in 9 locations with 13 center-based classrooms

and 1 home-based option.

Guardianship

The Organization's Guardianship program provides advocacy and guardian
services for the vulnerable population of New Hampshire residents
(developmentaily disabled, chronically mentally ill, traumatic brain injury,
and the elderly suffering from Alzheimer's, dementia, and multiple medical
issues) who need a guardian and who have no family member or friend
willing, able, or suitable to serve in that capacity. This prograrh serves 414
individuals. Additional services include, conservatorship, representative
payee-ship, federal fiduciary services, benefit management services and
private probate accounting services.

Transportation

The Organization's transit program provides various. transportation
services: public bus routes, door-to-door service by request, long distance
medical travel to medical facilities outside our regular service area, and
special trips for the elderly to go .shopping and enjoy other activities that
are located outside the regular service area, The'Organization's fleet of 17
wheelchair accessible vehicles offers transportation options to the elderly
and disabled, as well as to the general public.

Volunteer

The Coos County Retired & Senior Volunteers Program. (RSVP) maintains
a minimum group of 394 volunteers, ages 55 and older, of which 287
actively served during the last reporting period. These volunteers share
their skills, life experiences, and time with over 60 local non-profit and
public agencies throughout Coos County that depend on volunteer
assistance to meet the needs of their constituents. Our volunteers donate

over 46,764 hours yearly.

Workforce Development

The Organization is assisting transitional and displaced workers as they
prepare for new jobs, and also assisting currently-employed workers to
gain the skills required for better jobs.



The Organization is helping to implement New Harnpshire's Unified State
Plan for Workforce Development, in line with the federal Workforce
Investment Act. Workforce training programs, with training facilities in
three towns, provide temporary assistance for needy families (TANF)
recipients with 20-30 hours per week of training in the areas of employment
skills, computer skills, and business experience, and also place
participating TANF recipients in community-based work experience sites.

Alcohol & Other Drugs (AOD)

Services provided through the AOD program included assisting the
alcoholic/addicted person on the road to recovery, through three phases:
Crisis Intervention, Sobriety Maintenance, and Assessment and Referral to
appropriate treatment facilities.

The Residential Treatment Programs (Friendship House) provided
chemically dependent individuals with the fundamental tools of recovery,
including educational classes, group and individual counseling, work and
recreational therapy, and attendance at in-hpuse and community-based
alcoholics anonymous and narcotics anonymous meetings. The AOD
program also offered assistance with its impaired driver programs.

Effective October 1, 2017, the. Organization is no longer responsible for the
Alcohol & Other Drugs (AOD) program. The grants for the program were
transferred to North Country Health Consortium (NCHC), as they took over the
program. The Friendship House was sold to Affordable Housing Education and
Development (AHEAD).

Carroll County Dental

The Tamworth Dental Center (the Center) offers high quality oral health
care to children with NH Medicaid coverage. The Organization also serves
uninsured and underinsured children and adults using a sliding fee scale
that offers income-based discounts, for care. The Center accepts most
common dental insurances for those who have commercial dental

insurance coverage. A school-based project of the Dental Center, School,
Smiles, offers oral health education, screening, treatment and referrals for
treatment to over 1,000 children in 9 schools in the vicinity of the Center.

Support Center ,
The Organization's Support Center at Burch House provides direct service
and shelter to victims and survivors of domestic and sexual violence and
stalking in Northern Grafton County. Support Center services are
accessible 24 hours a day, 365 days a year. They include: crisis
intervention; supportive counseling; court, hospital and policy advocacy
and accompaniment; emergency shelter; support groups; community
education and outreach; violence prevention programs for students:
information, referrals and assistance accessing other community
resources.
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Homeless

Homeless services include an outreach intervention and prevention project
that strives to prevent individuals and families from becoming homeless,
and assists the already homeless in securing safe, affordable housing. The
Organization provides temporary shelter space for homeless clients.

The Organization also provides some housing rehabilitation services to
help preserve older housing stock.

Energy Assistance and Outreach

Energy Assistance Services provide fuel and electric assistance through
direct pay to vendors or a discount on the client's bill. Community Contact
sites allow local participants access to energy assistance programs and
other emergency services. The offices provide information to the
Organization's clients about other programs offered, as well as other
programs available through other organizations in the community.

Low-Income Weatherization

The NH weatherization program helps low-income families, elderly,
disabled, small children and individuals lower their home energy costs;
increase their health, safety, and comfort; and Improve the quality of living
while improving housing stock in communities around the state utilizing
energy cost saving, health and safety and carbon lowering measures. The
NH Weatherization Assistance Program also creates local NH jobs.

Elder

The Organization's elder program provides senior meals in 15 community
dining sites, home delivered meals (Meals on Wheels) to the frail and
homebOund elderly, and senior nutrition education and related
programming. The Coos County ServiceLink Aging & Disability Resource
Center assists with person-centered counseling, Medicare counseling,
Medicaid assistance, long-term care counseling services, and caregiver
supports.

Housing Services

Cornerstone Housing North, Inc. is subject to a Project Rental Assistance
Contract (PRAC) with the United States Department of Housing and Urban
Development (HUD), and a significant portion of their rental income is
received from HUD.

The Organization includes a 12-unlt apartment complex in Berlin, New
Harnpshire for the elderly. This operates under Section 202 of the National
Housing Act and is regulated by HUD with respect to the rental charges
and operating methods.
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The Organization has a Section 202, Capital Advance. Under guidelines
established by the U.S. Office of Management and Budget Uniform
Guidance, Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) part 200,
Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles and Audit
Requirements for Federal Aivards, the Section 202 Capital Advance is
considered to be a major program.

Method of accounting

The consolidated financial statements of Tri-Couhty Community Action Program,
Inc. have been prepared utilizing the accrual basis of accounting in accordance w/ith
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, as
promulgated by the Financial Accounting Standards Board (PASS) Accounting
Standards Codification (ASC). Under this basis, revenue, other than contributions,
and expenses are reported when incurred without regard to the date of receipt or
payment of cash.

Basis of presentation

The finaricial statements of the Organization have, been prepared in accordance
with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (US GAAR), which require the
Organization to report information regarding its financial position and activities
according to the following net asset classifications:

Net assets without donor restrictions include net assets that are not subject
to any donor-imposed restrictions and may be expended for any purpose in
performing the primary objectives of the Organization. These net assets may
be used at the discretion of the Organization's management and board ,of
directors.

Net assets with donor restrictions include net assets subject to stipulations
imposed by donors and grantors. Some donor restrictions are temporary in
nature; those restrictions will be met by actions of the Organization or by
passage of time. Other donor restrictions are perpetual in nature, whereby the
donor has stipulated the funds be maintained in perpetuity.

The Organization has net assets with donor restrictions of $678,254 and $817,791
at June 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively. See Note 13

Contributions

Contributions received are recorded as net assets without donor restrictions or net
assets with donor restrictions, depending on the existence and/or nature of any
donor-imposed restrictions. Support that is restricted is reported as an increase in
net assets without donor restrictions if the restriction expires in the reporting period
in which the contribution Is recognized. All other donor restricted contributions are
reported as net assets with donor restrictions, depending on the nature of the
restriction.'When a restriction expires (that is, when a stipulated time restriction
ends or purpose restriction is accomplished),', net assets with donor restrictions are
reclassified to net assets without donor restrictions and reported in the statement of
activities as net assets released from restrictions.
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Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable are stated at the amount management expects to collect from
balances outstanding at year-end. Most of the receivables are amounts due from
federal and state a\A^arding agencies and are based on reimbursement for
expenditures made under specific grants or contracts. A portion of the accounts
■receivable balance represents amounts due from patients at Carroll County Dental
program. Past due receivables are written off at management's discretion using the
direct write off method: this is not considered a departure from accounting principles
generally accepted in the United State because the effects of the direct write
method approximate those of the allowance method. Management selects accounts
to be written off after analyzing past payment history, the age of the accounts
receivable; and collection rates for receivables with similar characteristics, such as
length of time outstanding. The Organization does not charge interest on
outstanding accounts receivable.

Property and Depreciation
Acquisitions of buildings, equipment, and improvements in excess of $5,000 and all
expenditures for repairs, maintenance, and betterments that materially prolong the
useful lives of assets are capitalized. Buildings, equipment, and improvements are
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is provided using the
straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the related assets.

Depreciation expense related to assets used solely by an individual program is
charged directly to the related program. Depreciation expense for assets used by
more than one program is charged to the program based upon a square footage or
other similar allocation.

Depreciation expense related to administrative.assets is included in the indirect cost
pool and charged to the prograrns in accordance with the indirect cost plan.
Maintenance and repairs that do not materially prolong the useful lives of assets are
charged to expense as incurred.

Estimated useful lives are as follows:

Buildings and improvements 20 to 40 years
Vehicles 5 to 8.5 years
Furniture and equipment 5 to 15 years

Client Rents and HUD Rent Subsidy
Cornerstone Housing North, Inc.'s rents are approved on an annual basis by the
Department of Housing and Urban Development. Rental increases are prohibited
without such approval. The clients are charged rent equal to 30% of their income
less adjustments allowed by the Department of Housing and Urban Development.
Rent subsidies are received from the Department of Housing and Urban
Development for the difference between the allowed rents and the amounts
received from the clients.
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Refundable Advances

Grants received in advance are recorded as refundable advances and recognized
as revenue In the period in which the related services or expenditures are
performed or incurred. Funds received in advance of grantor cpnditions being niet
aggregated $197,157 and $191,069 as of June 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively.

Nonprofit tax status

The Organization is a not-for-profit Section 501(c)(3) organization in accordance
with the Internal Revenue Code. It has been classified as an organization that is not
a private foundation under the Internal Revenue Code and qualifies for a charitable
contribution deduction for individual donors. The Organization files information
returns in the United States. The Organization's Federal Form 990 (Return of
Organization Exempt, from Income Tax), is subject to examination by the IRS;
generally for three years after it is filed. The Organization is no longer subject to
examinations by tax authorities for years prior to 2015.

The Organization follows FASB ASC, Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes,
which clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes and prescribeis a
recognition threshold and measurement attribute for financial statement recognition
and measurement of tax positions taken or expected to be taken in a tax return.
The Organization does not believe they have taken uncertain tax positions,
therefore, a liability for income taxes associated with uncertain tax positions has not
been recognized,

Due to changes in the tax law in the 2017 Ta>i Cuts and Jobs Act, the Organization
is subject to file ah Unrelated Business Income Tax Return for unallowed expenses
for the year ended June 30, 2019. These expenses fall under the qualified taxable
fringe benefits. The total tax due for the year ended June 30, 2019 is approximately ■
$8,900.

Cornerstone Housing North, Inc. is exempt from income taxes under Section
501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. The Internal Revenue Service has
determined the Organization to be other than a private foundation within the
meaning of Section 509(a). '

Retirement plan

The Organization maintains a tax-sheltered annuity plan under the provisions of
Section 403(b) of the Internal Revenue Code. All employees are eligible to
contribute to the plan beginning on the date they are employed. Each employee
may elect salary reduction agreement contributions in accordance with limits
allowed in the Internal Revenue Code. Employer contributions are at the
Organization's annual discretion. In January 2013, erhployer contribution payments
ceased, therefore as of June 30, 2019 and 2018, there were no discretionary
contributions recorded. Further information can- be obtained from the

Organization's 403(b) audited financial statements.
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■Donated services and goods
Contributions of donated seivices that create or enhance non-financial assets or
that require, specialized skills and would typically need to be purchased if not
provid.ed by donation are recorded at their fair values in the period received.

Contributed noncash assets are recorded at fair value at the date of donation. If
donors stipulate how long the assets must be used, the contributions are recorded
as net assets with donor restrictions. In the absence of such stipulations,
contributions of noncash assets are recorded as net assets without donor
restrictions.

Donated propertv and equipment
Donations of property and equipment are recorded as support at their estimated fair
value at the date of donation. Such donations are reported as net assets without
donor restrictions unless the dorior has restricted the donated asset to a specific
purpose. Assets donated with explicit restrictions regarding their use and
contributions of cash that rhiist be used to acquire property and equipment are
reported as net assets with donor restrictions. Absent donor stipulations regarding
how long those donated assets must be maintained, the Organization reports
expirations of donor restrictions when the donated or acquired assets are placed in
service as instructed by the donor. The Organization reclassifies net assets with
donor restrictions^ to net assets without donor restrictions at that time.

Promises to Give
Conditional promises to give are riot recognized in the financial statements until the
conditions are substantially met. Unconditional promises to give that are expected
to be collected within one year are recorded at the net realizable value.
Unconditional promises to give that are expected to be collected in more than one
year are recorded at fair value, which Is measured as the present value of their
future cash flows. The discounts on those amounts are computed using risk-
adjusted interest rates applicable to. the years in which the promises are received.
Amortization of the discounts is included in contribution revenue. In the absence of
donor stipulations to the contrary, promises with payments due in future periods are
restricted to use after the due date. Promises that remain uncollected more than,
one year after their due dates are written off unless the donors indicate that
payment is merely postponed. When a restriction expires, net assets with donor
restrictions are reclassified to net assets without donor restrictions.

As of. June 30. 2019 and 2018, there were promises to give that were absent of
donor stipulations, but restricted in regards to timing, and therefore classified as net
assets with donor restrictions in the amount of $231,161 and $212,207,
respectively. This amount was included in grants and contracts on the
Consolidated Statement of Activities.
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Use of estimates

The presentation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities
and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting
period. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Accounting Standards Codification No. 825 (ASC 825), Disclosures of Fair Value of
Financial Instruments,'requires the Organization to disclose fair values of its
financial instruments. The carrying amount of the Organization's, financial
instruments which consists of cash, accounts receivable, deposits and accounts
payable, approximate fair value because of the short-term maturity of those
instruments.

Functional allocation of expenses

The costs of providing the various programs and other activities have been
sumrharized on a functional basts in the statement of activities. Accordingly, certain
costs have been allocated among the program services and supporting activities
benefited.

Program salaries and related expenses are allocated to the various
programs and supporting services based on actual or estimated time
employees spend on each function as reported on a timesheet.

Workers Compensation expenses are charged to each program based upon
the classification of each employee and allocated to the various program
based upon the time employees spend on each function as noted above.

Paid Leave is charged to a leave pool and is allocated to each program as a
percentage of total salaries.

Fringe Benefits are charged to a Fringe Benefit Pool. These expenses
include employer payroll taxes, pension expenses, health and dental
insurance and unemployment compensation. The pool is allocated to each
program based upon a percentage of salaries.

• Depreciation expense is allocated to each program based upon specific
assets used by the program and is reported as depreciation expense on the
statements of functional expenses.

Other occupancy expenses are applicable to assets which are used by
multiple programs. Buildings are primarily charged to the benefiting program

" based upon an analysis of square footage. Costs related to a building include
depreciation, insurance, utilities, building maintenance, etc. These costs are
reported as space costs on the statements of functional expenses.
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Insurance: automobile insurance is allocated to programs based on vehicle
usage: building liability insurance is allocated to programs based on square
footage of the buildings; and insurance for furniture and equipment is allocated
to programs using the book basis of the insured assets.

The remaining shared expenses are charged to an Indirect Cost Pool and
are allocated to each program based upon a percentage of program expenses.
The expenses include items such as administrative salaries, general liability
insurance, administrative travel, professional fees and other expenses which
cannot be specifically identified and charged to a program.

The Organization submits an indirect cost rate proposal for the paid leave, fringe
benefits and other indirect costs to the U.S. Department of Health and Human
Services. The proposal, effective for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2018, received
provisional approval and is effective, until amended, at a rate of 12.50%. Per the
agreement with the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, the
Organization's final rate for the year ended June 30. 2018 was 11.45%. The actual
rate for the year ended June 30. 2019 was approximately 10.44%, which is
allowable because it is less than the provisional rale.

Advertising pollcv

The Organization uses advertising to inform the community about the programs It
offers and the availability of services. Advertising is expensed as incurred. The total
cost of advertising for the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018 was $11,698 and
$18,616, respectively.

Debt Issuance Costs

During the year ended June 30. 2019, the Organization retrospectively adopted the
provisions of the FASB Accounting Standards Update (ASU) No. 2015-03,
"Simplifying the Presentation of Debt Issuance Cdsts." The ASU is limited to
simplifying the presentation of debt issuance costs, and the recognition and
measurement guidance for debt issuance costs is not affected by the ASU.
Amortization expense of $887 has been included with interest expense in the
consolidated statements of functional expenses for both 2019 and 2018.

New Accounting Pronouncement

On August 18, 2016, FASB issued ASU 2016-14,.Not-for-Profit Entities (Topic 958)
- Presentation of Financial Statements of Not-for-Profit Entities. The update
addresses the complexity and understandability of net asset classification,
deficiencies in information about liquidity and availability of resources, and the lack
of consistency in the type of information provided about expenses and investment
return. The Organization has adjusted the presentation of these statements
accordingly. The ASU has been applied retrospectively to all periods presented.
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NOTE 2. LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY

The following represents the Organization's financial assets as of June 30, 2019
and 2018:

Financial assets at year-end:
Cash and cash equivalents, undesignated
Accounts receivable

Pledges receivable

Total financial assets

Less amounts not available to be

used within one year:
Net assets with donor restrictions

Less net assets with time restrictions to be

met in less than a year

Amounts not available within one year

Financial assets available to meet general
expenditures over the next twelve months

2019

S  1.400,750
1,274.083

231.161

2.905.994

678,254

f348.63i:

329.623

£  2.576.371

2018

S  1.329,038
1.156,657
212.207

2.697.902

817,791

f540.643^

277.148

It is the Organization's goal to maintain financial assets to meet 60 days of
operating expenses which approximates $2,786,000 and $2,729,000 respectively,
at June 30. 2019 and 2018.

NOTE 3. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS , ,

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand; funds on deposit with financial
institutions, and investments with original maturities of three months or less. At
year end and throughout the year, the Organization's cash balances were
deposited with multiple financial institutions. At June 30. 2019 and 2018, the
balances in interest and non-interest-bearing accounts were insured by the FDIC up
to $250,000. At June 30, 2019 and 2018. there was approximately $1,750,000 and
$1,200,000, of deposits held in excess of the FDIC limit, respectively. Management
believes the Organization is not exposed to any significant credit risk on cash and
cash equivalents and considers this a normal business risk.

Cash Restrictions

The Organization is required to maintain a deposit account with a bank as part of
the loan security agreement disclosed at Note 7. It is required to maintain a
balance of $19,968 in the account, which is restricted from withdrawal except to
make payments of debt service or as approved by the US Department of
Agriculture.
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Amounts withdrawn to make payments of debt service must be replenished with
monthly deposits until the maximum required deposit balance is achieved. The
balance as of June 30, 2019 and 2018 was $20,010 and $19,980. respectively.
The Organization has made ail of their scheduled deposits for the years ended
June 30. 2019 and 2018. These amounts are included in restricted cash on the
Statements of Financial Position.

The Organization is required to maintain a deposit account with another bank as
part of a bond issue (see bond payable in Note 7). The required balance in the
account is $173,817 and Is equal to 12 monthly payments. The balance as of June
30. 2019 and 2018 was $176,298 and $176,570, respectively, and the Organization
was in compliance with this requirement. These amounts are included in restricted
cash on the Statements of Financial Position.

The Organization maintains a deposit account on behalf of clients who participate in
the Guardianship Services Program. The balance in the account is restricted for
use on behalf of these clients and an offsetting liability is reported on the financial
statements as other current liabilities. The total current liability related to this
restriction at June 30, 2019 and 2018 was $582,116 and ̂ 78,605, respectively:
jhese amounts are included in other liabilities on the Statements of Financial
Position. The total restricted cash within this account at June 30, 2019 and 2018
was $582,116 and $378,605, respectively, and is included in the restricted cash
balance on the Statements of Financial Position.

At June 30, 2019. the Organization had $45,198 in restricted cash relating to the
property that is held for sale at year end. Upon the sale of the property, it will be
donated to another non-profit Organization.

Certain, cash accounts related to Cornerstone Housing North, Inc. are restricted for
certain uses in the Organization under rules and regulations prescribed by the
Department of Housing and Urban Development. The total amount restricted at
June 30, 2019 and 2018 was $179,277 and $131,610, respectively. See Note 15.

NOTE 4. INVENTORY

In 2019 and 2018, inventory included weatherization materials which had been
purchased in bulk. These items are valued at the most recent cost. A physical
inventory is taken annually. Cost is determined using the first-in, first-out (FIFO)
method. Inventory at June 30, 2019 and 2018, consists of weatherization materials
totaling $85,886 and $87,569, respectively.
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During the year ended June 30, 2018, the Organization adopted the provisions of
the FASB Accounting Standard Update (ASU) 2015-11, Inventory, (Topic 330):
Simplifying the Measurement of Inventory, which simplifies the subsequent
measurement of inventory by requiring inventory to be measured at the lower of
cost or net realizable value. Net realjzabie value is the estimated selling price of
inventory in the ordinary course of business, less reasonably predictable costs of
completion, disposal and transportation. The Organization has evaluated ASU
2015-11 and has determined that there is no material impact to the financial
statements.

NOTE 5. ACCRUED EARNED TIME

For the years ending June 30, 2019 and 2018, employees of, the Organization were
eligible to accrue vacation for a maximum of 160 hours. At June 30, 2019 and
2018, the Organization had accrued a liability for future annual leave time that its
employees had earned and vested in the amount of $204,079 and $203,121,
respectively.

NOTES. PROPERTY

Property consists of the following at June 30. 2019:

Capitalized Accumulated Net
Cost Depreciation Book Value

Building
Equipment
Construction

in progress
Land

$ 9,709,749 $3,469,618 $ 6,240,131
1,950,063 1,708,917 241,146

2,500 - 2,500
423.840 : 423.840

$ 5.178.535

Property consists of the following at June 30, 2018:

Capitalized Accumulated Net
Cost Depreciation Book Value

Building $10,003,944 $3,448,411 $6,555,533 .
Equipment 2,384,905 1,754,913 629,992
Land 423.840 : 423.840

■$-12.812.689 S 5.203.324 $ 7.609.365

The Organization has use of computers and equipment which are the property of
state and federal agencies under grant agreements. The equipment, whose book
value is immaterial to the financial statements, is not included in the Organization's
properly and equipment totals.
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Depreciation expense for the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018 totaled
$447,669 and $463,483, respectively.

The Organization has property held for sale at June 30, 2019 amounting to
$47,000, which is classified as a current asset in the accompanying consolidated
statements of financial position. The total loss on the write down to market value of
this property was $255,492.

NOTE 7. LONG TERM DEBT

The long term, debt of the Organization as of June 30. 2019 and 2018 consisted "of
the following:

2019 2018

Note payable with the USDA requiring 360 monthly
installments of $1,664, including interest at 5% per
annum. Secured by general business assets. Final
installment due January 2027. $ 124,867 $ 138,225

Note payable with a bank requiring 120 monthly
installments of $3,033, including interest at 4.69%
per annum. Secured" by first mortgages on two
commercial properties. Final installment due April
2021. 328,896 349,131

Note payable with a bank requiring 60 monthly
installments of $459, including interest at 5% per
annum. This note was an unsecured line of credit
that was converted to a term loan during the year
ended June 30, 2016. Final installment due April
2021. ■9.618 14,500

Note payable to a financing company requiring 72
monthly installments of $312, including interest at
5.49% per annum. Secured by the Organization's
vehicle. Final installment due August 2021. 7,642 10,874

Note payable to a financing company requiring 72
monthly installments of $313. including interest at
5.54% per annum. Secured by the Organization's
vehicle. Final installment due July 2021. 7,385 10,637

Note payable to a financing company requiring 60
monthly installments of $143, including interest at
5.99% per annum. Secured by the Organization's
vehicle. Final installment due November 2020. 2,331 3,863
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Note payable to a financing company requiring 72
monthly installments of $248, including interest at
6.10% per annum. Secured by the Organization's
vehicle. Final installment due February 2023. 9.739 12.041

Note payable with a bank requiring 60 monthly
installments of $2,512, including interest at 5.51%
per annum. Secured by second mortgage on
commercial property. Final balloon payment is due in
March 2023. 395,429 403,244

Bond payable with a bank requiring monthly
installments of $14,485, including interest of 2.75%
plus the bank's internal cost of funds multiplied by
67%. with an indicative rate of 3.28%. Secured by
first commercial real estate mortgage on various
properties and assignments of rents at various
properties. Final installrhent due August 2040. 2.634,595 2,719.260

Cornerstone Housing North, Inc. capital advance
due to the Department of Housing and Urban
Development. This capital advance is not subject to
interest or principal amortization and will be forgiven
after 40 years, or in August 2047. 1,617,600 1,617,600

Cornerstone Housing North, Inc. mortgage payable
due to New Hampshire Housing Finance Authority.
The mortgage is not subject to interest or principal
amortization. Payments are deferred for 40 years,
final payment due In August 2047. 250.000

1

250.000

Total long term debt before unamortized debt
issuance costs

Unamortized deferred financing costs
5,388,102

f11.818)

5,529,375

(12.7051

Total long term debt
Less current portion due within one year

5,376,284

(148.4491

5,516.670

(142.7331

S 5.227.835 $ 5.373.937
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The scheduled maturities of long-term debt as of June 30, 2019 were as follows:

Years ending
June 30 Amount

2020 $ 148,449
2021 437,624

2022 123,156

2023 485,481

2024 118,295

Thereafter 4.075.097

$ 5.388.102

As described at Note 3. the Organization Is required to maintain a reserve account
with a bank for the first two notes payable listed above.

NOTE 8. CAPITAL LEASE OBLIGATIONS

During the year ended June 30, 2016, the Organization leased a phone system and
copier under the terms of capital leases, expiring in November 2020 and March
2021, respectively. During the year ended June 30. 2017, the Company teased an
additional copier under the terms of a capital lease,-expiring in May 2021. The
assets and liabilities under the capital leases are recorded at the lower of the
present value of the minimum lease payments or the fair value of the assets. The
assets are depreciated over their estimated lives.

/

The obligations included in capital leases at June 30, 2019 and 2018, consisted of
the following:

2019 2018

'Lease payable to a financing company with
monthly installments of $208 for principal and
interest at 9.5% per annum. The lease is secured
by the phone system and will mature in November
2020. $ 3,291 $ 5,362

Lease payable to a financing company with
monthly installments of $122 for principal and
interest at 8.841% per annum. The lease is
secured by a copier and will mature in March

'  2021. 2,261 3,467
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Lease payable to a financing company with
monthly installments of $122 for principal and
interest at 8.918% per annum. The lease is
secured by a copier and will mature in May 2021. 2.673 3.842

8,225 12.671
Less current portion (4.870) (4.445)

$  8.226

The scheduled maturities of capital lease obligations as of June 30, 2019 were as
follows:

Years ending
June 30 Amount

2020 . $ 4,870
2021 - 3.355

' S 8.225

note 9. DEIVIAND NOTE PAYABLE

The Organization has available a $750,000 line of credit with its primary financial
institution which is secured by real estate mortgages and assignments of leases
and rents on various properties as disclosed in the line of credit agreement.
Borrowings under the line bear interest at 5:00% per annum, and totaled $316,000
at June 30, 2018. There was no balance outstanding at June 30, 2019. The .line is
subject to renewal each January.

The Organization was issued an unsecured revolving line of credit in 2014 with the
New Hampshire Department of Administration Services. The Organization was not
required to make payments of interest or principal prior to maturity. At-June 30,
2018, the outstanding debt totaled $200,022, which included accrued interest of
$21,434, The unsecured revolving line of credit was paid off in full during the year
ended June 30, 2019. '

NOTE 10. OPERATING LEASES

The Organization has entered into numerous lease commitments for space.
Leases under non-cancelable lease agreemerits have various starting dates,
lengths, and terms of payment and renewal. Additionally, the Organization has
several facilities which are leased on a mohth to month basis. For the years ended
June 30. 2019 and 2018, the annual rent expense for leased facilities totaled
$181,127 and $165,227, respectively.
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Future minimum lease payments under non-cancelable operating leases having
initial terms in excess of one year as of June 30, 2019, are as follows:

Years ending
June 30 Amount

2020 " $ 147,778
2021 65,003
2022 3.301

NOTE 11. IN-KIND CONTRIBUTIONS

The Organization records the value of in-kind contributions according to the
accounting policy described in Note 1. The Head Start, transportation and elder
programs rely heavily on volunteers who donate their services to the Organization.
These services are valued based upon the comparative market wage for similar
paid positions.

The Organization is also the beneficiary of a donation of in kind in the form of below
market rent for some of the facilities utilized by the Head Start and elder programs.
The value of the in-kind rent is recorded at the difference between the rental

payment and the market rate for the property based upon a recent'appraisal.

Many other individuals have donated significant amounts of time to the activities of
the Organization. The financial statements do not reflect any value for these
donated services since there is no reliable basis for making a reasonable
determination.

NOTE 12. CONCENTRATION OF RISK

Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. receives a majority of its support from
federal and .state governments. For the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018,
approximately $13,951,828 (77%) and $13,773,803 (75%), respectively, of the
Organization's total revenue was received from federal and state governments. If a
significant reduction in the level of support were to occur, it would have a significant
effect on the Organization's programs and activities.

Cornerstone Housing North, Inc. receives a large majority of its support from the
U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development. For the years ended June
30. 2019 and 2018, approximately 69% of the Organizations' total revenue was
derived from the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development. In the
absence of additional revenue sources, the future existence of Cornerstone
Housing North, Inc. is dependent upon the funding policies of the U.S. Department
of Housing and Urban Development.
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The majority of Cornerstone Housing North, Inc.'s assets are apartment projects,
for which operations are concentrated in the elderly person's real estate market. In
addition, the Organization operates in a regulated environment. The operation of
the Organization Is subject to administrative directives, rules and regulations of
federal, state and local regulatory agencies, including, but not limited to, HUD.
Such administrative directives, rules and regulations are subject to change by an
act of Congress or an administrative change mandated by HUD. Such changes
may occur with little notice or inadequate funding to pay for the related cost,
Including the administrative burden, to comply with the change.

NOTE 13. NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS

Net assets with donor restrictions are available for the following specific program
services as of June 30, 2019 and 2018:

2019 2018

Temporary Municipal Funding $ 231,161 $ 212,207
•10 Bricks Shelter Funds 142,190 142.190

FAR, 117.470 136,614

Restricted Buildings 87,541 190,049

Support Center 25,939 -

Weatherizatioh 25,000 -

Loans - HSGP 19,907 21,454

FAP/EAP 11,290 23,249

RSVP Program Funds 7,056 5,021

Senior Meals 5,130 -

Head Start 3,999 4,172

Donations to Maple Fund 1,571 1,586
Homeless Programs - 27,680
USDA 10,332
Loans - HHARLF - 6,967

ION Capacity Fund - 32.194

Community Needs Assessment - 4.076

Total net assets with donor restrictions £ 678.254 £ 817.791

NOTE 14. COIVIIVIITIVIENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Grant Compliance

The Organization receives funds under several federal and state grants. Under the
terms of the grants the Organization is required to comply with various stipulations
including use and time restrictions. If the Organization was found to be
noncompliant with the provisions of the grant agreements, the Organization could
be liable to the grantor or face discontinuation of funding.
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En\^ironmental Contingencies

On March 30, ,2009, the Organization's Board of Directors agreed to secure
ownership of a 1.2-acre site located in Berlin^ New Hampshire. There are 2
buildings on this site designated as the East Wing and West Wing Buildings which
were formerly used as a research and development facility for the Berlin Mills
Company. •

The exterior soil and interior parts of the East Wing Building contained
contaminants which required environmental remediation. In a letter dated May 2,
2012, the State of New Hampshire Department of Environment Services (the
Department) noted that the remedial actions for the exterior soils and parts of the
East Wing Building had been completed to the Department's satisfaction.

In addition, the Department noted that the contaminants related to the West Wing
Building did not pose an exposure hazard to site occupants, area residents, and the
environment, provided the West. Wing Building is maintained to prevent further
structural deterioration. If further deterioration occurs and contaminants are

released into the environment, the Organization could be required to take additional
action including containment and remediation.

Loss Contingencies

During the year ended June 30, 2018, legal actions were brought against the
Organizatiori. Due to the uncertainty of the outcome of such cases as of June 30,
2019, as well as the uncertainty of the Organization's potential liability, no amount
has. been accrued by the Organization at this time. ,

NOTE 15. REPLACEMENT RSERVE AND RESIDUAL RECEIPTS ACCOUNTS

Under Cornerstone Housing North, Inc.'s regulatory agreement with HUD. the
Organization is required to. set aside amounts into a replacernent reserve for the
replacement of property and other project expenditures approved by HUD. HUD-
restricted deposits of $129,407 and $106,548 were held in a segregated account at
June 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively. HUD-restricted deposits generally are not
available for operating purposes..

Cornerstone Housing North. Inc.'s use of the residual receipts account is contingent
upon HUD's prior written approval. Residual receipts of $46,514 and $21,326 were
held in a segregated account for the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018,
respectively.

%

.  HUD has initiated policies to recapture funds built up in residual receipts accounts
upon renewal of the Organization's project rental assistance contract. The policies
direct that the amounts in excess of certain limits in the residual receipts account be
(a) used to offset rent subsidies due from HUD under HAP contracts, or (b) remitted
directly to HUD. The policies generally require project owners to limit the monies
accumulated in the residual receipts account to $250 per unit.
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In accordance with the policy noted above, subsequent to year end the
Organization was required to remit funds to HUD totaling $31,412. In addition to the
funds remitted, HUD approved the Organization to withdraw $11,852 from the
residual receipts account for equipment.

NOTE 16. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Subsequent events are events or transactions that occur after the statement of
financial position date, but before financial statements are available to be Issued.
Recognized subsequent events are events or transactions that provide additional
evidence about conditions that existed at the statement of financial position date,
including the estimates inherent in the process of preparing financial statements.
Non-recognized subsequent events are events that provide evidence about

-  conditions that did not exist at the statement of financial position date, but arose
after that date. Management has evaluated subsequent events through October 21,
2019, the date the financial statements were available to be issued.
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TRt-CQUKTY COMMUWrTY ACTtOW PROr.BAI^ |fff;

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

FEDERAL GRANTOR.'PROCRAM TITLE

U.S. Ocoanm^nt o1 Health and Htiman Serriees
Heao Stan

Head Stan

Low-lnrome Home Eneofv AtS'Siance
Low-Income Home Energy Assisiancc
Low-Income Home Encruy Assistance

Low-Income Hgme Energy Assi&lsnce

AGING CLUSTER

SoeciBi Programs for Uw A^ng - Ttilc lit. Ps.t Q • Grants lor Soooorttve Services and SerWor Centers (SEAS)
Speeuu Programs tor the Aging • Dlle III. Pnrt B - Crams lor Sopoertive Sendees ano Senior Cenim fSt Wheels)

Special Programs lor Ihe Aging • Tijla 111. Pan C - tJolrilion Services (C«<gregaie A HD Meals)

Noiriiion Semcos Incentive Program (NSiP)

Commoniiy Services Bloc* Grant

TAMF CLUSTER

Temporary Assistance lot Heetly Pamriies (WHEP Wortcplace Success)
Temporary Assistance tor Neeoy Families (JARC)

HIV Care Formula Grams (Ryen Whiic Carc Progmm)

Social Sorvtces BiocL Gtam (Title XX lAR)
Social Se.-vices Koch Gram (Title X.X HQ)
Social Services Qioch Grani (Guaitllarvsnip)

Promoiinj Sate and Siawe Farrtiies/Famii* vioietKe Prevernioii and Stsvices/Oiscreiionary

I

fteveniative HHS Hoch Grant & Injury Prevention arvd Control Researcn

Projects fcit Assistance in fransillpn from Homeiessness (PATH)

Preveni Sciual Assault on College Camouses

Total U.S. Depanmeni ̂  Healin and Human Services

FEDERAL

CFOA

NUMBER
PASS-THROUGH

GRANTOR'S NAME

93.600 1

93 COO

93.5«

93.668

33.668

93.668

Stale ot New Hampshire Office ol Energy and Planning
Stale ol New HamosNre Office of Energy and Placvtino
Slate of Now Hampshire Office of Energy and Piaming
Slate of New Hampshire Office of Energy and Planning

93 044 Suie of New Hampshire Office of Energy ano Planning
93.044 Slate of New Hampsnire Deoanmen: of Health and Human Services

93.045 State of New Hampshire Oepanmcnt of Health and Human Services

93 053 Slsie oi New Hampshire Oepsnmeni of Hcatw and Hurgan Services

93.5G9 SiBie Of New Hampshire Dcpanmcni of Heaf-h arvj Human Services

93.568 Southern New Hamoshire Services, inc.
93.558 State 01 Ner« Hampshire Deoanment oi Health and Huirvw Services

93.9t7 Stale of New Hampshire Oepahmenl ol Health and Human Service#

93.667 Sta» ol New Hampshire Oeparjneni ol Health and Hurw Services
93.667 State of Now Hamoshife C3eoaiitncni ol Health and Htwtan Services
93.667 Suic qf New Hamosnife Dcpanmcnt of Health and Human Services

93.556 8 93.592 State of Mew Hampshire Coaiilion againsi Oomesiic ano Scvum violence

93.136 8 93.768 State of Ne-v Hampshire Coalition agawui Domestic and Sevuai Violence

93.150 State of New Hampshire Diireau of Homeiessness and Housirtg

93 XXX University ol New Hompshite, Durham

GRANTOR'S

IDENTIFYING FEDERAL

OICH100DO-C4-00 S  1.424.301
01CH10000-064}0 1.088.289

TOTAL 2.512.5fX)

G-ieB1NHLIEA 93.918
G-1901NHLIEA 5.620.283

G-ieaiNHLIEA 10S6420 305.368

6-19B1NHLIEA 1066420 241 mg

TOTAL 6461 l?fl

18AANHT1SP 5.363

5)2-500352 111.273

TOTAL U6.639

541-500386 284,654

NONE 61.200

CLUSTER TOTAL 46? 493

102-500731 738.731

16-DHHS-BWW-CSP-05 307,922

102-500731 24 800

CLUSTER TOTAL 332 72?

530-500371 9910

545-K)0387 113.843

544-500386 82.574

102-500731 13.582

TOTAL 209.999

SPIROV 53.297

SVP 6628

05-95-42-423010-7926 73 17?

CSAPP 678

i  -lo.ssi.ads



IRl-CPUNTY CQMMUWtrr ACTtON PW;(y;!W.t. iwc: .

SCHEDUU OF eXPEKDITURES OF FEDERAL AV/AROS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. MH

FEDERAL GRAMTOR/PROGRAM TITLE

FEDERAL

CFOA

NUMfiER

PASS-THROUGH

r.RAHTOR'S NAMF

PASS-THROUGH

GRANTOR'S
NUMBER

FEDERAL

U.S. Ocpgnment of Enwot

Wcaineriution As»isi»ncc ibr Low-incon>e Persons 81042 Slate ol New HampsNie Governor's Office ol Energy & Comounily Services EE0007935 $ 273 iM

Totm U.S. Oepsfsmem of Ene^
$ 273.168

V^S.-Cofpgmlpniof-Nal»on»l am) ComrHinttY Service

Reiirefl and Seriior Voiuniccr Program 94 002 16SRANH001 $ 86 939

ToiRl U.S. Corporation lot Nalionai and Conununli'v Serv^e .
i 66.939

U.S^BfO.Sfln)«nCoW!irioiitl.jrf
C^Mid anij Adult Care Food Program to.sss State d New Hamosfiire Deoarimeni ol Education NONE S 122.661

Toial U.S. Dcpanmertt c/ Agriculture
S 122.661

U.S. DeoanmefW ol HerriatatKl Security

Emergency Food S Sheller Program (FEMAJ 97,024 s 10 408

Emergency Alanapemer.t Perloimance Grants (FE«A) 97.042 State ol New Hampshire Oeparuneni of Solely EMB-2017.EP<KX»5-S0t 23 798

Total U.S. Dcoartmcni o( Homeland Security
s 33.706

U.S. Of[>Bftnwftt ot Justice

Crime Victim Assistance (VOCA) :657& Stale ol New Hampsrurc Coaiiiion against Dome.siic and Scri^ VicierKe NOME & 154 433

SenuAl Assault Services Famiuta Program (SASPJ 16.C17 Stale ol New Hamostiire Coaotion against Domeslic and Semal Violence 2017.KF-AX0019 16.176

QWV Tecrinical Assistance Iratiailwe 16.575 >. Grafton Ccunty Court OViV.20t6-t3«29 27.55?

Total U3. Ocoanmeoi ot Justice
s 198.161

U.S. Department of Transportation

Porrmaa Grants lor Rural Areas {Scciiort 53i i) 20.509 Stale ol NewHamptfiire Oepartmeni ol Transportation NH.18.X046 s 293 Sl»

TRANSIT SERVICES PROGRAMS CLUSTER

Enhanced Mobility d SecHors and Individuats with Oi&aOiiilics .
EnharKed Motnlity ol Seniors and lneividual.s with Oisat>>l'ties (3310 POS. nCC)

70.513

20.513

Siaie d Herr Hampshire Oepariment ol Trartsportation
Slate d Ni?w Hampshire beparpnent oi Transportation

04.*M»4e>s>o.mie«r>MQMS

M.«s.a».«wato.7«ift«.-t.<cgs>5

29.689

53.002

CLUSTER TOTAL a? 951

Toi.tl U.S. Department ol Transporiation
i 37S751

U.S. Department et HousIoq and Urban Oevelooment

Emergency Sptutions Granl Program i4.m State d New Hampshire Department d Kealih and Human Services 102-500731 $ 07.703

Continuum ol Care Program (HOIP) 14.267 Sate d New Hampshire Deoartmcnl d Health ana Human Services SS.»t«.BHHS.0t4:(nR) -4 144.922

Total U-S Oepartmcrrt ol Housing and Urti.in Developmera S 21? ITS
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SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

FEDERAL GRANTOR/PROCRAU TLTLE

FEDERAL

CFOA

NUMBER

PASS-THROUGH

GRANTOR'S NAME

PASS-THROUGH

GRANTOR'S FEDERAL

NUMBER EXPENDITURES

U^. Owftwcnt o> Labor .
WIAIWIOA CLUSTER

WIA/WIOA AduN Program
WWWIOA D^bcatM Wofk«r Formoa Grar^is

Toiai U.S. Oeoarjrwtt of Labor

TOTAL EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

tT.rsa

i7.j7a

Sousnem N4r» Hamoxlrbe S«rvic«s. Inc.

Sootftem New Hampstwa Services, Inc.
ntSOOCW S 39.2S0

201WX)04 ^39,058

CLUSTER TOTAL 78.308

12.5«XI87

NOTE A. BASIS OF PRESENTATION

TTw aceomo3rtjflr»g scKediA) of woeocWores o( Federal Awards fiho Scn-rJuie) irrchrfles the federal grant aebvitv of TrLCoorMy Comrauney Aeiior* Prograrn. Inc. under program* of the fetierai govemmeni lor the year ended Jorw 30 20J9 The Worma'-ort m iNi
Scheeule a oreset«e<J n accordance with the reovircmenis cf T«ie 2 U.S.Code of Fooeral RegoUiioTO Part 200. LfriForm Atsninesrafiiro RwrM-amMs. Co.*/ Prtnctyes. eod Au<u RMurem«nts for FeOcral Awntit (Uniform CoiiJancBi' Because the Schedule
preserfls oriiy a seiecleo ooriiori of the oocratjorw ofTri-CountyComnxincy Acton Program, inc., it i* not intertdcd to arwJ dees r»o« oresent •-he rmaneial posaion. c-tarsgea ret assets, or cash flows of the Orgwtrrat^,

Eitperrdiwes reoorted on the SchetMo are reported on the xeruai basis ol accounting. Such e*ccn<«ures we recognized folowing the cost principics contained in Orvfom Guiosnce, wnereei cer*.an types of erpendrhjres we not aitowable or are linsted as to
reimborsenreni. Nttgaiiyo amouna s.*»own on the Schedule rcprnent adjusimena or oodRS nwde m the normal course cf bus'meso to amouna teponod as erpenditures in wiorytiars.

NOTE C ■ INDtRECT RATE

T/i-Coon:y Community Action Program Inc. has elecsed lorwjt use the lO-oerceni de mWmis ewMBCi cost r.ite asowea unoerihe Urvfwm Guidance.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL

REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON

AN audit of FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUPmNG STANDARDS

To the Board of Directors of

Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.
Berlin, New Hampshire

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United Stales of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of Tri-County
Community Action Program, Inc. (a nonprofit organization), which comprise the statement of financial
position as of June 30. 2019, and the related statements of activities, functional expenses and cash
flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our
report thereon dated October 21. 2019.

Internal Control Over Financial Reportlrig
In planning and performing our audit of the consolidated financial statements, we considered Tri-County
Community Action Program Inc.'s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine
the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our
opinion on the consolidated financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of Tri-County Comrnunity Action Program Inc.'s internal control. Accordingly, we do
not express an opinion on the effectiveness of. Tri-County Community Action Program Inc.'s internal
control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
managerrient or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis, A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a
timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged
with governance,

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify alt deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

32



Compliance and Other Matters
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Tri-Counly Community Action Program Inc.'s
financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which
could have a direct and material effect on the determination of consolidated financial statement
amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of
our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no
instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government
Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control -and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to. provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
organization's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the organization's internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

October 21. 2019
North Conway. New Hampshire
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TRI.CQUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM. INC.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE

FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL

OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

To the Board of Directors of

Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.
Berlin, New Hampshire

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program
We have audited Tri-County Comrriunity Action Program-Inc.'s compliance with the types of compliance
requirements, described in the 0MB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material
effect on each of Tri-County Community Action Program Inc.'s major federal programs for the.year
ended June, 30, 2019. Tri-County Community Action Program Inc.'s major federal programs are
identified in the summary of auditors' results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and
questioned costs.

Management's Responsibility.
Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and
grants applicable to its federal programs.

Auditors'Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of. Tri-County Community Action
Program Inc.'s major federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements
referred, to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States;
and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform
Administrative Requirements. Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform
Guidance). Thoise standards and Uniform Guidance require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An
audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about Tri-County Community Action Program Inc.'s
compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as .we considered
necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major
federal program. However, our audit doeis not provide a legal determination of Tri-County Community
Action Program Inc.'s compliance.
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Opinion on Each Major Federal Program
In our opinion. Trl-County Community. Action Program. Inc. complied, in all material respects, with the
types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each
of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2019,

Report on Internal Control over Compliance
Management of Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. is responsible, for establishing and
maintaining effective internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements
referred to above. In planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered Tri-County
Community Action Program Inc.'s internal control over compliance with the types of requirements that
could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to determine the auditing
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in
accordance with Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of Tri-Counly Community Action Program, Inc.'s internal control over compliance.

A, deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their
assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over
compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that
there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant
deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that Is less
severe than a material weakness. iaJnternal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit
attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify .all deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control over corhpliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However,
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of
Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

October 21, 2019

North Conway, New Hampshire
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TRI-COUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM. INC.

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2019

1. The auditors' report expresses an unmodified opinion on the financial statements of Tri-County
Comrriunity Action Program, Inc.

2. No significant deficiencies relating to the audit of the financial statements are reported in the
Independent Auditors' Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on Compliance
and other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with

Government Auditing Standards.

3. No instances of noncompliance material to the financial statements of Tri-County Community
Action Program, Inc. which would be required to be reported in accordance with Government
Auditing Standards, were disclosed during the audit.

4. No significant deficiencies in Internal control over major federal award programs during the audit
are reported in the Independent Auditors' Report on Cofnpliance for Each Major Program and
on Internal Control over Compliance in Accordance with the Uniform Guidance.

5. The auditors' report on compliance for the major federal award programs for Tri-County
Community Action Program. Inc. expresses an unmodified opinion on all major programs.

6. No audit findings that are required to be reported in accordance with 2 CFR 200.516(a) are
reported in this Schedule.

7. The programs tested as major programs included:

U.S. Dept. of Health & Human Services, LIHEAP - CFDA #93.568

■  U.S. Dept. of Health & Human Services, Head Start - CFDA #93.600

U.S. Dept. of Energy, Weatherizalion Assistance for Low Income Individuals ~ CFDA
#81.042

8. The threshold for distinguishing Type A and B programs was $750,000.

9. Tri-County Community Action Program. Inc. was determined to be a low-risk auditee.

FINDINGS - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AUDIT

None

FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - MAJOR FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAMS AUDIT

None
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«Feifinaiuie IL. I[6oIbDl]laQ*«D

(PtfDHIE STKEI^CTIBIS

Progiam cJcvclopmcni. managcme.rn and adniinisiratinn ♦ Community coDaborations
Development of policy, protocol, and sen-ice deliver)- to mecr fundcr standards

Grant writing and management « Budget performance and fmanciai rcponing
Innovative solutions & problem solving ♦ Capacit)- building

Professional presentations ♦ Public speaking
Dedication ♦ Imagination ♦ Determination ♦ Fortitude

IPntfltlFIESSIlg&iyAIL EXPEKDEIVCIE

TTri-Counly Coinmunil;' Aclion B'roj^rumu, Bnc.
Chief ICxcculire Officer

Berlin, IVSI 20iS - current fT entploymeni

Tri-Counl.r CommuoifT Action Programs, Inc.
Chief Operating Officer -
Berlin. KU 2016 -2018
Responsible for the operations of six agency Divisions with 15 individual programs that provide over
60 consumer services across three counties of Northern New Hampshire. Essential duties include,
supervision of Division Directors, oversee and monitor program resources, revenues, expenditures
and budget performance; tactical oversight of programs to meet or exceed agency defined sti-atcgic
goals; develop and implement strategies to improve individual programs and overall agency prograni
and fiscal performance; oversee and lead special projects such as the Annual Report, Strategic Plan,
Communit)' Needs Assessment process, and work with Senior Management Team to develop new
service initiatives. Provide tactical guidance to Division Directors ro trouble shoot issues and problems
in the daily operations of programs.

Tri-Coimtty Cominiinil.r Arlion Progrnmii. Iiir.
Uh-iwion Birecfor: TCCAP IPrevenlioii Scr>-ices
Derlin. Nil 2015-2010

Responsible for four agencv programs under the umbrella of TCCAP Prevention Services; oversee
division resources, revenues, and expenditures and monitor budget performance; general oversight of
programs to meet or exceed agency defined strategic goals; super\'ise program directors; write grants
to support programs, monitor results, and prepare grant reports and fmancia) statements for fundcrs
and agency; develop fufidraising and marketing strategies for programs; represent program tlirough
parricipation in state and local initiatives relative to prt>gram/division goals and serv^icc deliver)';
cdllaboraic with stakeholders and elected officials, including presenting legislative testimony.

Tri-Coun<y Community Ar<i«»i PrograniK, Inc.
Program/Divhion Director: ;S'up|K>rt Cenlc:r nt Ilurch lIouKc
Littleton, New Ulumpuliirc 2t>07-2015

Oversee daily operation and supeh'ision of domestic and sexual violence crisis center and residential
shelter; write grants ro support programs, monitor results, and prepare gram reports and financial
statements for fundcrs and parent agency; oversee program rcst)urccs, revenues and expenditures, nntl
monitor budgei performance and progress toward strategic goals; create and direct victim advocacy-
programs to ensure compliance with grant dclivcraijies and applicahlc state and federal law, dc\ elop
fundraising and marketing strategics; participate in state and local coilaboraiions to enhance victim
semces; represent program in state and federal victim service initiatives, including presentation of
legislative tcsumony; create and present trainings for medical and legal professionals on legal standards
and best practices for victim services.



Randall S. Pilotte

S U M M A RU 1>I 1>J A f\ 9

Accounting professional with over 29 years of experience, of which 21 years were with a single private manufacturer.
16 years of experience managing accounting professionals. Key competencies include:

financial Statements Accounts Payablcs Inventory Fixed Assets
Payroll Bank Reconciliations Accounts Receivables SalcsAJsc Tax
Budgeting Cash Flow Management Audits Forecasting

Experience

TRI-COUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM. INC.. Berlin. NH 06/2013.Prcscnl

CFO (2017-Present)
Work closely with the CEO, Treasurer and Finance Commiuec to identify performance goals for the Agency and to
lainlain, systems to monitor pcrfcitnahce against those goals. Plan, direct, coordinate, implement and evaluate the
Inancia! managemerirsystcms and activities of the Agency with a budget of S18M.

Prepare/provides complete and accurate financial, statistical, and accounting records for the Agency and outside
regulatory agencies.

As a member of the senior management team, assists in the formulation and execution of corporate finance
policies, objectives and programs.
Prepares program and agency budgets in conjunction with the CEO and Program Directors. Plan, direct,
coordinate, implement and evaluate fiscal performance reviews of Tri-County CAPs divisions.
Hire, train, direct and evaluate employee performance within the department; recommend pronwiions and salary
adjustments.

ProN'idcs super\'ision and direction for the Facililic.s Management Team, cnsuiing thai all mortgages, leases and
covenants arc ntaintaincd for Tri-County CAP's facilities, Creation of five-year capital plan.
Reviews cash flows for each division, monitor cash management practices, and monitor investments associated
with each property.
Prepared five-year debt reduction plan.

Hscal Director/Interim CFO (2016 - 2017)

Direct and manage a fiscal stuff of ,5 and processes associated with the general ledger, payroll, and accounts
payable, accounts receivable, cash receipts and fixed assets.
Prepare and supersHse the production of fitiancial statements including Balance Sheet, Revenue and Expense
Reports, and Cost Summaries on a monthly and annual basis.
Maintain proper accounting cdnU-ols on grants and contributions to enSurc accurate rc\enuc reporting and expctisc
tracking to support periodic monitoring's by fundcrs and auditors.
Ensure all balance sheet, revenue and expense accounts arc anaLv-cd and reconciled periodically.
Collaborate with Division Directors to monitor departmental revenue and expenses versus budget.
Worked with the CFO to dc\'clop real time monthly and annual financial reporting; and implementing
departmental goals.
Prepare audit schedules for cxlcrtial auditors,
Collaborate with external auditors in completing annual audit in a timely nunncr.

Accounting Manager (2015-2016)

Sr. Accountant (2013-20M)

RANDALL PILOTTE RESUME:



REGAN L. PRIDE

SUMMARY

My CAperieoce spans the fields of engiTteermg, computer icchnoiogy, educaiion. and public adminisiration.
This unique combination brings a wide array of knowledge and skills to the table for your organization. I am a
team player, a patient trainer, and adept at interpersonal relations.

REVELANT KNOWLEDGE AND SKILL AREAS

• Confidence in public speaking for business and technical applications, and instructional settings
• Strong writing skills and interpersonal communication skills, ability to icach others, and build consensus
• Approachable, warm and personable style in leaching classes end interacting with colleagues

• Robust education in mathematics, engineering and general science topics
• Fluency with entire Microsoft Offtce application suite.
• Fluency with AutoCAD computer-aided drafting sofhsare
• Familiarity with ArcVlew CIS software.
• Familiar with Avante Enterprise Resource Planning software
• Familiar with BMSI fund accounting and Aviiar assessing/tax billing software
• Adept at Macrocricdia/Adobe Dreamweaver MX web site design soft^-arc

WORK EXPERIENCE

NORTH COUNTRY COUNCIL REGIONAL PLANNING COMISSION. Littleton. KM
TITLE: Planner, 2012-2013+ 2015-2018

Managed solid waste technical assistance program funded by USDA Rural Development. Conducted "full Cost
Accounting" studies of municipal solid waste department operations. Reviewed and updated operating plans for
municipal solid waste facilities. Organized household Hazardous waste collection events. Created and delivered
training programs for solid waste operator ccrlificalion.. Created pilot programs to reduce & diven food waste
from landfills in A communities.

20I3-20M

INNOVATIVE STRUO'URAL BUILDING PRODUCTS

TITLE: Project Manager
Perfonncd a voriety of functions including business plan prcpataiion and product development associated with a
start-up company in the engineered wood sheathing industry. I created engineering drawings, built and tested
' prototypes, and assisted in marketing activities.

2000-Present

ICANTOO ENTERPRISES. Lisbon. NH

TITLE: Owner, Computer Applications Consulting
Assistance and training with business and technical applications. Created customized solutions involving
AutoCAD. MS Work, MS Excel. MS Access soRwarc applicaiions. I also perform web site HTML and CGI
development, hardware setup, upgrades, and troubleshooting.
Recent clients/projects include:
•  New England Electric Wire Corp - Implementation of Avantc MRP & APS scheduling software,

computerized WIP labeling system, computer workstation installations, user/operator training.
•  Littleton, NTT Senior Softball League - custom programming and support of statistical software
•  l..ouisiana Corporate Credit Union - Web site design and maintenance.
•  Brammer Creek - Web site design for wholesale food distributor.
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O/jv^hmnan beings arc perceived as potentials rather tlian problems, as
'^'jjosscssing strengths instead of ivcaknesscs, as imlimiied rather that) dull
\ .••'• 'and unresix)nsive, liten ihey Uirive arid grow to their capabilities."

^Barbara Dush

^j^'^Exp&rience
Miy 2019-fresent
Division Director TCCAl'. hu- Prcvcntirtn

ii(.-s|>(>ii.Ml)k- to |>r(i\-i(k- .Si. Lvadcisliip and ntvi'sighl Ui iIk- rk-vclopini-tii.
d».'.<igii. d.iily <)|x.Taiion, onnpliamv, and linanrial solwin y ol ilw progiMn)>
ami rarilitics iin(k-r Pii-vfiition .Scivitc.s wltirli lijckKli- Cnai'di:i!i.<.liip .Scivirrs:
Hiiniflc.ss IVri^rain.*;. iiu'liidin;' Tylfr Uiaiii 1 Inmclr.^s Slielin'. arul .Advorary
and .Snp|N)i1 Scivi<'c.>i Idr Vii llni.v of Dnineslii' V'inlciiiv and Sexual Assanll.
iiu'lndin.u Kjiu'i^'enry Slieliet' Senict'.s al die .Sn}>|>oii CVnlei at Bini li llmi.sc

Sept 2018-PfeJcoi
Dhision Operations Coordinaior TCCAP. InC' PieN'eiuimi

Hespnn.-iilile Idr nniniiiirinK r ninplianie nrKitiiii deliverables and k-Kal / eitiii'at
inlegrily id pingiani.N anrl seiviio itlleii'd duonglmni llie Di\i>i<)n. Ilespoiixible
in minpile and aiinlrte division data-. ivpnilitiR trends and oiiKotnes lo Sr.
inanaReinent and [iH-al .siakehnklers. He.siM)nsil)le lo rlevelnp. review, and
update proxrani nTilien poliey, prnrednies. ami work llnws. Responsible Idr
progriun devclopincni and oxx-isiulit.

tVtSYZ017~Aueusl 201B
North Counii)- SUD Contimnnn of Care Facilitator / Ixad Transition
Coordinator N'oilb ('onntry Mealdi C'onsoriinni

COCF;'Ihc .\iiidi Cotiniiy Region's <lesignaieil state liaison )e.\ponsil)le lo
\*<nk nidi regional key .siakeholdeis lo tondnei :i < oni|iiebensive as.sels and gajis
analysis; repoiiin.^ back lindings to .\'H ni lli.S and (aciliiaie dii' dcvekiinneni
111 a coinpitiheiisiw plan aiineii lo ci'eale a'lobiisl. elleclive. am) well-
eoindiiiaied Coniinnimi of Care iCoC) in die North Cotiniiy Idr aildiessins;
siilislamv Use dismclers (SI'D) dial inclnde healili, pievciiiion, early
iilenlilieation/inteiavntion. iieauneni and iveovcn- supports. Rf.s)M>iisil)le for
eoiiinnniiiy edneaiion and eiigagenieni.

LT'C." Responsible lo oteosve die nu-rger and acipiisilioii ol die l)i\ision tif
.Aleoliol am) oilu-i Drug Seiviees. iiuindin;; die legioii'.s 32-lK-d residential
ncainieni laeiliiy. Kesponsiide lo pioi ide 'rei lmieal A.ssisiimce uidi i'rograni
Developnieni. n-insler of Stale. I'erk'ial. am! C'oinnieieial eontrael.s, inilial
C'letk-niialing and Ucvn.Miie ol the new nvaijiieni laeiliiy rollouing t-onstmeiinn
coniplelion, and nianagiii); pi'e))ar:ilion for CARF .Arcre'diialidii; '



Carolyn Towne

SUMMARY OF QUALIFICATIONS

A dynamic and passionate self-starter with diversified experience and strong interest in non-profit and
social service organizations, working with underserved populations, and crisis intervention services.

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

Tri-County Community Action Program 2018-Present
Director of Housing Supports
•  Supervise a team of 5 including 4 Homeless Intervention and Prevention Specialists and 1

Housing Stabilization Coordinator.
•  Oversee the operations of and report on program's grant and loan programs to include PATH,

ESG, EHP, PSH. HSGP. and HHARLF.

•  Assist with completing grant/funding applications and represent TCCAP homeless programs at
local. Stale. .and other levels.

•  Maintain gbod working relationship with State and other funders as well as other service
providers!

•  Assist with developing new programs to help address homelessness In the North Country.
•  Agency Administrator for HMIS.

Families in Transition 2016-2018
Housing Advocate
•  Provided individual case management services for participants in transitional housing, permanent

supportive housing and shelter.
•  Supported participants in creating an action plan and achieving individual goals related to
.  obtaining and/or maintaining stable housing, recovering from SUD, improving financial

management skills, obtaining/maintaining mainstream benefits, improving physical and/or mental
health, obtaining gainful employment and/or increasing education, improving parenting skills, and
engaging in activities of daily living.

•  Connected participants to community resources and benefits while communicating with collateral
contacts as needed to coordinate appropriate level of care, support with navigating systems, and
facilitate stable housing.

•  Coordinated and facilitate workshops related to programming such as program orientation,
apartment maintenance, self-care, employment, financial rhanagement. and program graduation.

•  Maintained caseload files and document services in a timely manner.

The Support Center at Burch House 2015-2016
Education and Outreach Coordinator

•  Provided violence prevention education and outreach presentations to schools, community
groups, social service agencies, police departments, and medical personnel, including the,
creation and distribution of relevant educational brochures.

•  Provided direct services.to victims and survivors of domestic violence, sexual violence and
stalking and their families to include court accompaniment, crisis intervention via hotline, and
accompaniment to child advocacy center.

•  Outreached the community, in-person and via social networking, to increase awareness of the
impact of domestic and sexual violence on victims, their families, and the community and to
inform of services offered by the agency and ways to access these services.

•  Created and managed online donation opportunities.

Families in Transition 2010-2015
Housing Program Manager (2013 • 2015)
• . Supervised a team of 5 Housing Advocates and managed the agency's housing program,

consisting of-17 buildings and 200+ units of housing for 180 clients.
•  Provided oversight and managed the supportive services provided to the housing program

participants including: Workshops, individual case management, special events, and back-up for
the 24hr crisis line.



•  Collaborated with other community providers In order to ensure the success of housing
participants.

•  CoHaborated with colleagues to develop, implement, and evolve programming. .
•  Collaborated on and provided oversight of housing program's strategic plan to ensure that

programming and services were focused on goals, following strategies outlined, and meeting
outcome expectations.

• , Presented program outcomes to senior management team on a quarterly basis.
•  Collaborated with the Chief Operating Officer to create, update, and implement housing program

policies.
•  Attended weekly LADC/Clinical supervision and attended continuing education trainings to ensure

best services possible provided to participants.

Housing Advocate (2010-2015)
•  Provided Individual case management services for participants.
•  Supported participants in creating an action plan and achieving individual goals related to

obtaining and/or maintaining stable housing, recovery from SUD. improving financial
management skills, obtalnirig/maintaining mainstream benefits, improving physical and/or mental
health, obtaining gainful employment and/or increasing education, improving parenting skills, and
engaging in activities of daily living.

•  Connected participants to community resources and communicated with collateral contacts as
needed to coordinate appropriate level of care and facilitate stable housing.

•  Coordinated and facilitated workshops related to programming such as program orientation,
apartment maintenance, self-care, employment, financial management, and program graduation.

•  Maintained caseload files and document services in a timely manner.

•  f

YWCA Supervised Visitation and Child Exchange Center. Manchester, NH 2007-2014
Visit Supervisor
•  Facilitated a safe and neutral environment for court ordered supervised visits and exchanges

between a child(ren) and their nonresidential parent.
•  Responsible for supervising contact between child(ren) and non-residential parent during the visit.
•  Ensured strict adherence to the center's policies and procedures by providing deaf direction and

redirection as needed during the visit.
•  Documented objective observations before, during, and after visits.

Child and Family Services. Laconia. NH 2009-2010
Parent Aide

•  Supervised visits between child(ren) in placement and their parenl(s). Modeled appropriate
parenting techniques and provided coaching regarding life skills.

•  Supported parent(s) with identifying and accessing appropriate community resources.
•  Completed treatment plans, assessments, and documentation of visit notes in a timely manner.

Fellowship Housing Opportunities. Concord. NH 2007-2009
Community integration Coordinator
•  Provided direct care and support with symptom management and activities of daily living in a

residential setting forvpeople suffering with severe and persistent mental illness.
•  Coordinated and provided therapeutic behavioral services and medication support services to

clients suffering with severe and persistent mental illness to clients within the residence and in the
community.

•  Resolved medication issues via communication with client, outreach staff, pharmacy personnel
and client's treatment team as needed.

EDUCATION and SKILLS

BA In Psychology, Summa Cum Laude, University of New Hampshire at Manchester, Manchester NH
Certified trainer in Connect Suicide Prevention and Postvention Curriculum
Certified CALM (Counsel on Access to Lethal Means) Trainer
ProHcient in Microsoft Office Suite



ADDITIONAL CONTINUING EDUCATION QUALIFICATIONS

Motivational Interviewing: Advancing the Practice
Dialectical Behavioral Therapy for Case Managers
Brazelton Touchpoints
Trauma-Informed Care

Cognitive Behavioral Therapy for Case Managers
Relational Cultural Theory
Evidence-Based and Strength-Centered Case Management
SOAR



Tri-Count}' Communit)' Action Program, Inc.

PSH Key Personnel

Name Job Title Salary % Paid from Amount Paid from

tliis Contract this Contract

Jeanne Robillard Chief Executive Officer $115,000 0% 0%

Randal Pilotle Chief Financial Officer $75,000 0% 0%

Regan Pride Chief Operations Officer $70,000 0% 0%

Rristy Letendre Prevention Division Director $53,000 10% $5,300.00

Caroiyn Towne Director of Housing supports $45,000 20% $9,000.00


